# Collective Bargaining Agreement Between

# North Orange County Community College District and Adjunct Faculty United Local 6106 AFT/AFL/CIO

July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2027



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE	<b>SECTION</b>		PAGE
1		AGREEMENT	1
	1.1	Effect of Agreement, Separability and Savings	1
	1.2	Negotiations	1
2		RECOGNITION	3
	2.1	Recognition of Adjunct Faculty United	3
	2.2	Recognition of the District	4
	2.3	Negotiation Through Designated Representatives	4
3		UNION RIGHTS	5
	3.1	Institutional Facilities	5
	3.2	Information to Adjunct Faculty United	5
	3.3	Compensation for Union Business	5
4		ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	7
5		PERSONNEL FILES	8
6		ASSIGNMENT AND SCHEDULING	g
	6.1	Request for Assignment	g
	6.2	Preferred Consideration of Request for Assignment	g
	6.3	Conditions of Employment	10
	6.4	Withdrawal and Cancellation of Assignments	12
7		WORKING CONDITIONS	13
8		MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	16
9		EVALUATION	17
	9.1	Purpose of Evaluation	17
	9.2	Frequency of Evaluation	17
	9.3	Components of Evaluation	17
	9.4	Administrative Evaluation	18
	9.5	Peer Evaluation	19
10		CLASS SIZE	20

ARTICLE	SECTION		PAGE
11		SALARY	22
	11.2.1	Initial Salary Column Placement (Schedules A and B)	22
	11.2.2	Initial Salary Step Placement (Schedules A and B)	22
	11.2.3	Salary Column Advancement (Schedules A and B)	22
	11.2.4	Salary Step Advancement (Schedules A and B)	23
	11.3.1	Initial Salary Placement (Schedule C)	23
	11.3.2	Salary Advancement (Schedule C)	24
12		BENEFITS	26
13		OFFICE HOURS	30
14		LEAVES OF ABSENCE	32
	14.1	Sick Leave	32
	14.2	Personal Necessity Leave	33
	14.3	Jury Duty	33
	14.4	Legislative Leave	33
	14.5	Professional Activity Leave	34
	14.6	Organizational Leave	34
	14.7	Bereavement Leave	34
15		DISTANCE EDUCATION	35
16		GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	38
	16.1	Purpose	38
	16.2	Definitions	38
	16.3	Matters Excluded	38
	16.4	Rights and Responsibilities	39
	16.5	Waivers and Time Limits	39
	16.6	Procedure	39
	16.7	Filing	42
17		ACADEMIC FREEDOM	44
18		NONDISCRIMINATION	45
19		EMPLOYMENT DURING WINTER INTERSESSION	46

APPENDIX A	ADJUNCT FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULES	
APPENDIX B	PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORMS	
B-1	Student Evaluation Form – Instructor	
B-2	Student Evaluation form – Counselor	
B-3	Student Evaluation Form – Librarian	
B-4	Adjunct Faculty Performance Evaluation Form – Instructor	
B-5	Adjunct Faculty Performance Evaluation Form – Counselor	
B-6	Adjunct Faculty Performance Evaluation Form – Librarian	
APPENDIX C	GRIEVANCE FORMS	
C-1	Adjunct Faculty Grievance Form	
C-2	Adjunct Faculty Grievance Appeal Form	

STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (STRS)

**FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT SERVICE CREDIT STANDARD** 

**PAGE** 

47

**ARTICLE** 

20

**SECTION** 

#### **AGREEMENT**

## 1.1 <u>Effect of Agreement, Separability and Savings</u>

- 1.1.1 The articles and provisions contained herein constitute a bilateral and binding agreement ("Agreement") by and between the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the North Orange County Community College District ("District") and the American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6106, Adjunct Faculty United AFT/CFT ("Union").
- 1.1.2 The provisions of this agreement shall be effective upon full ratification of this tentative agreement, except as specially provided otherwise in this Agreement, and shall continue in full force and effect for a term of three years.
- 1.1.3 This Agreement contains the full and complete commitment between the District and the Union and may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary and mutual consent of the parties in a written and properly signed amendment to this agreement.
- 1.1.4 During the term of this Agreement, except as specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, the District and the Union expressly waive and relinquish the right to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter, whether referred to herein or not, even though such subject or matter may not have been in the knowledge and contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- 1.1.5 Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, nothing herein shall invalidate or limit the District's right to continue the exercise of any past practice or understanding with any Unit Member or group of Unit Members in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement. The District shall not be bound by any past practice or understanding with any Unit member or group of Unit Members in existence prior to the effective date of this Agreement, unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement.
- 1.1.6 The specific provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over the District's written policies and written procedures to the extent such policies and procedures are inconsistent with its terms.
- 1.1.7 Should any provision of this Agreement be rendered invalid, or should compliance with or enforcement of any provision be restrained by operation of any law, rule, regulation or order issued by a governmental or judicial authority other than the District, such provision shall be immediately suspended and shall be of no effect. Hereunder so long as such law, rule regulation or order shall remain in effect. In the event of invalidation, restraint or suspension of any provision of this agreement as provided above, either party may serve upon the other a written request to negotiate the effects of such invalidation, restraint or suspension. Negotiations shall commence within thirty (30) calendar days of the service and receipt of such written request.

# 1.2 <u>Negotiations</u>

- 1.2.1 During the term of this Agreement, the Union and the District shall have the right to reopen this Agreement in the 2026-2027 academic year. In the event either party desires to negotiate reopeners as provided herein, such party shall serve upon the other by October 15<sup>th</sup> of each year, a written request to commence negotiations and an initial written proposal for such reopeners.
- 1.2.2 By mutual written agreement, the Union and the District may agree to negotiate at any time regarding any article within this Agreement.

shall serve upon the other, not earlier than six (6) months prior to the expiration date of the Agreed a written request to commence negotiations and an initial written proposal for such succe Agreement.	ment, essor

#### **RECOGNITION**

#### 2.1 Recognition of Adjunct Faculty United

- 2.1.1 The Board of Trustees ("Board") of the North Orange County Community College District ("District") recognizes the American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6106, Adjunct Faculty United AFT/CFT Union, as the exclusive representative for the bargaining unit established by the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB), case number LA-RR-1407. Specifically, the unit shall include part-time hourly academic employees performing credit or noncredit assignments as instructors, counselors and librarians and employed in such assignments for not more than sixty-seven (67) percent of the load of scheduled duties for a full-time regular faculty member having comparable duties averaged over the semester or term. For purposes of this article:
  - 2.1.1.1 "Part-time hourly academic employee" means a faculty member who is employed at an hourly or per unit rate pursuant to Education Code Section 87482.5 in a position requiring minimum qualifications pursuant to Education Code Section 87001;
  - 2.1.1.2 "Scheduled duties" means those duties that comprise the portion of a regular faculty member's contractual responsibilities that consist of teaching, counseling or librarianship assignments, but excludes office hours and campus hours. "Sixty-seven (67) percent of the load of scheduled duties for a full-time regular faculty member" is equated as follows:
    - 2.1.1.2.1 <u>Credit teaching assignments</u>: Ten (10) Lecture Hour Equivalent units;
    - 2.1.1.2.2 <u>Noncredit teaching assignments</u>: Sixteen and one-half (16.5) hours per week;
    - 2.1.1.2.3 Counseling assignments: Twenty-three (23) hours per week;
    - 2.1.1.2.4 Librarianship assignments: Twenty-three (23) hours per week.
  - 2.1.1.3 The sixty-seven (67) percent load equivalents as stated above shall be revised accordingly by the District in the event of a change in the basis for calculating the load of scheduled duties for full-time regular faculty members, as defined in the collective bargaining agreement governing regular and contract faculty.
  - 2.1.1.4 The parties agree that in the event Section 87482.5 of the California Education Code is amended to increase the specified percentage of employment for part-time hourly academic employees to more than sixty-seven (67) percent of the hours per week considered a full-time assignment for regular employees having comparable duties, the increased percentage of employment shall be incorporated into this article at the time it becomes operative. Sections 2.1.1, 2.1.1.2 and 2.1.1.3 shall be understood to incorporate such change pending the official negotiations of the parties.
- 2.1.2 The unit shall exclude the following:
  - 2.1.2.1 Full-time or pro rata contract (probationary) and regular (tenured) faculty members, including overload assignments performed by said faculty members;
  - 2.1.2.2 Temporary faculty members employed and paid on the Regular and Contract Faculty Salary Schedule;
  - 2.1.2.3 Day-to-day substitutes;

- 2.1.2.4 Administrators, managers and confidential employees, including academic assignments performed by said employees;
- 2.1.2.5 Classified employees, except as to part-time hourly academic assignments performed by said employees as defined in section 2.1.1.1 above;
- 2.1.2.6 All other District employees, regardless of the service performed, including, but not limited to, professional experts, short-term hourly employees and student employees.

# 2.2 Recognition of the District

Adjunct Faculty United AFT/CFT recognizes the Board as the exclusive representative of the District.

# 2.3 <u>Negotiation Through Designated Representatives</u>

The parties agree to negotiate exclusively through the designated bargaining representative appointed by each party.

#### **UNION RIGHTS**

#### 3.1 Institutional Facilities

- 3.1.1 The Union shall have the right to use institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and campus email, subject to reasonable regulation by the District, for the routine posting or transmission of information or notices concerning union matters. The District email is for official business use only and shall not be used for the transmission of any derogatory or slanderous comments. The District will provide the union with an official mailbox at each college. District and campus mail systems and other District means of communication shall not be used for the distribution of political materials.
- 3.1.2 The Union shall have the right to use institutional facilities and standard office equipment, subject to reasonable regulation by the District, for the purposes of conducting Union business. Access to, and use of, institutional facilities shall be subject to availability in accordance with site scheduling and reservation procedures.
- 3.1.3 Use of or access to institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, campus email, facilities and equipment by the Union shall not interfere with or interrupt District/campus operations, classroom activities, or the scheduled duties of employees. District supplies and materials shall not be used for organizational purposes. In cases of use or access that will result in costs to the District, the union shall make arrangements for reimbursement to the District prior to such use or access.
- 3.1.4 The District will provide office space for the Union at Fullerton College and Cypress College.

#### 3.2 Information to Adjunct Faculty United

- 3.2.1 Once each regular semester-or, if requested by the Union, the District will, within fifteen (15) working days of such request, furnish the Union with a list of the names, job titles and information regarding the load or compensation of the Unit Members then currently employed, based on current information in the District's computer files.
- 3.2.2 Once each regular semester, if requested by the Union, the District will, within fifteen (15) working days of such request, furnish the Union with a list of the names, date of hire, home addresses and telephone numbers of Unit Members, except for those Unit Members who have requested that such information not be disclosed, based on current information in the District's computer files.
- 3.2.3 The district will furnish the Union with a copy of this Agreement for each Unit Member after negotiations are completed for a new contract and will post the Agreement on the District website.
- 3.2.4 Twice each regular semester, if requested by the union, the District will, within fifteen (15) working days of such request, furnish the Union with a list of the names, college (i.e., Cypress College, Fullerton College, North Orange Continuing Education) and course assignments of Unit members, based on current information in the District's computer files. If requested by the Union, this information will be provided in electronic spreadsheet format, as selected by the District.
- 3.2.5 Once each regular semester, if requested by the Union, the District will, within thirty (30) working days of such request, furnish the Union with a report of the last evaluation date of active Unit Members.

#### 3.3 <u>Compensation for Union Business</u>

3.3.1 In satisfaction of the requirements of Chapter 10.7 of the Government Code, during the regular semester and scheduled instructional intersessions, the District shall provide a cumulative total of not more than one thousand fifty (1050) hours of compensation each academic year to such Unit Members

- as may be designated by the Union for the purposes of official union business with the District, including negotiations, processing grievances, and disciplinary matters.
- 3.3.2 To be eligible for compensation as provided in section 3.3.1, a Unit Member must be employed in an academic assignment with the District, as provided in Article 2, section 2.1.1.1 of this Agreement, during the regular semester or scheduled instructional intersession in which such compensation is to be awarded. The hours of compensation shall not be reflected in the load schedule of the Unit member.
  - 3.3.2.1 The District and the Union agree that pursuant to the provisions of section 87482.5 (c)(1) of the Education Code, the hours of compensation for union activities awarded to any Unit Member as provided herein shall constitute "ancillary activities" and shall not be used for purposes of calculating eligibility for contract or regular status with the District.
  - 3.3.2.2 The hours of compensation for union activities awarded to any Unit Member as provided herein shall not count toward the eligibility requirements to qualify for "preferred consideration" with respect to a Unit Member's request for assignment as provided in Article 6 of this Agreement.
  - 3.3.2.3 The hours of compensation for union activities awarded to any Unit Member as provided herein shall not count toward the eligibility requirements to qualify for the District health insurance premium reimbursement as provided in Article 12 of this Agreement.
- 3.3.3 Not later than the last day of the spring semester, the Union will provide the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources with a list of such designated Unit Members and the number of hours of compensation awarded to each pursuant to this section for each regular semester and scheduled instructional intersession during the next academic year. The Union shall promptly notify the District should subsequent changes be necessary.

#### **ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY**

- 4.1 The Union has the exclusive right to have employee organization membership dues and Committee on Political Education ("COPE") contributions deducted by the District from the wages or salary of employees in the bargaining unit in accordance with the provisions of this Article.
- 4.2 Upon request by the Union, the District will make payroll deductions for all current bargaining unit employees who are members of the union in accordance with the District's procedures and the Union's dues schedule and COPE contributions schedule. Payroll deductions shall be processed in accordance with standard District operating procedures from the first day of the month following 45 calendar days after receipt by the District of written notice by the Union of unit members who have joined the union.
- 4.3 The Union may specify a change in the amount of the dues and COPE contributions provided an authorized Union officer submits a written notice to the District for such adjustment. Revised payroll deductions will be processed in accordance with standard District operating procedures from the first day of the month following 45 calendar days after receipt by the District of the Union's written notice for adjustment.
- 4.4 Upon written notification by the Union that a bargaining unit employee has revoked their union membership, the District shall cease the deductions within the next pay period.
- 4.5 Bargaining unit employee's requests to join, revoke, or otherwise amend their Union membership status or payroll deduction authorizations shall be directed to the Union.
- 4.6 The District shall, without charge, transmit to the Union the sums deducted under this Article.
- 4.7 The Union shall establish internal complaint procedures for resolving Unit Member complaints concerning the deductions and contributions made pursuant to this Article. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Union to resolve complaints, and it is the expressed intent of the parties that any such dispute or claim shall be specifically excluded from the grievance procedure as provided in this Agreement.
- The Union agrees to indemnify and financially hold harmless the District, its Board of Trustees, officers and administrators against any and all claims, demands, costs, lawsuits, including attorney fees incurred in defending said persons or District, or any other form of liability or expense, including but not limited to, all court or administrative agency costs, that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the District for the purpose of complying with this Article. The Union shall have the exclusive right to determine whether any such action or proceeding shall or shall not be compromised, resisted, defended, tried, or appealed. This indemnification and hold harmless duty shall not apply to actions related to compliance with this section brought by the exclusive representative of district employees against the public school employer.

#### **PERSONNEL FILES**

- 5.1 The personnel file of each Unit member shall be maintained at the District Central Administration Office.
- 5.2 Materials in the personnel file of any Unit Member which may serve as a basis for affecting the Unit Member's employment status shall be made available for inspection by the Unit Member, except the following:
  - 5.2.1 ratings, reports or records which were obtained prior to the employment of the Unit Member;
  - 5.2.2 materials prepared by identifiable members of any examination or hiring committee prior to the employment of the Unit Member;
  - 5.2.3 materials obtained in connection with any promotional evaluation or examination.
- 5.3 Except as provided in section 5.2, a Unit member shall have the right to inspect the Unit Member's personnel file upon request, provided that such inspection shall be made during normal business hours and at a time when the Unit Member is not otherwise required to render service to the District. An officially designated representative of the Union may inspect a Unit Member's personnel file upon written request and authorization of the Unit member, provided that such inspection shall be made during normal business hours and at a time when the union representative, if then employed by the District, is not otherwise required to render service to the District.
- 5.4 Information of a derogatory nature, with the exception of materials specified in subsections 5.2.1, 5.2.2 and 5.2.3, shall not be entered or filed unless and until the Unit Member is given notice and opportunity to review and comment thereon.
  - 5.4.1 Such review shall take place during normal business hours and the Unit Member shall be released from duty for this purpose, if necessary, without loss of pay.
  - 5.4.2 A Unit member shall have the right to enter, and have attached to any such derogatory statement, the Unit Member's response. Such written response shall be submitted within ten (10) working days of the Unit Member's receipt of notice as provided in section 5.4.
- 5.5 Derogatory material for which the originator cannot be identified may not be placed in a Unit member's personnel file.
- 5.6 Subject to reasonable regulation by the District, a Unit Member shall have the right to submit materials related to the Unit Member's performance as an employee of the District for placement in the Unit Member's personnel file.
- 5.7 Upon receipt of a written request from a Unit Member which identifies specific derogatory materials, the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee will remove said derogatory materials from the Unit Member's personnel file subject to the following:
  - 5.7.1 Derogatory materials, with the exception of evaluations and supporting materials, may be removed from the Unit Member's personnel file after six (6) regular semesters or nine (9) regular semesters of paid service by the Unit Member subsequent to the placement of the derogatory material in the file, provided no other related derogatory materials have been placed in the file within that period.
  - 5.7.2 Evaluations and supporting information may not be removed before a subsequent evaluation that has no unsatisfactory ratings or derogatory comments has been placed in the file.

#### **ASSIGNMENT AND SCHEDULING**

#### 6.1 Request for Assignment

- 6.1.1 The District shall make available forms, which shall be posted on the North Orange County Community College District intranet, on which Unit Members may request assignments and load up to sixty-seven (67) percent for a regular semester and indicate the assignment(s) and load they would be willing to assume for that semester.
- 6.1.2 For an assignment request to be valid and eligible for consideration, the District assignment request form, properly completed, signed and dated, must be submitted within the specified window period and received in the appropriate office by the specified deadline as follows:

# 6.1.2.1 <u>Semester Assignment Requests</u>

- 6.1.2.1.1 <u>Fall Semester Assignment Request</u>: Form must be received in the appropriate division office not later than the first instructional day of November of the previous fall semester, but not earlier than the first instructional day of the previous fall semester.
- 6.1.2.1.2 <u>Spring Semester Assignment Request</u>: Form must be received in the appropriate division office not later than the first instructional day of April of the previous spring semester, but not earlier than the first instructional day of the previous spring semester.
- 6.1.2.1.3 A separate assignment request form must be submitted for each semester. Requests for teaching assignments must specify each course the Unit Member would be willing to assume as an assignment.
- 6.1.3 The District shall have the right to modify the forms from time to time, at its discretion. However, the District will consult with the Union prior to implementing changes in the forms.

#### 6.2 Preferred Consideration of Request for Assignment

- 6.2.1 A Unit member who submits a timely and properly completed request for assignment form in accordance with the provisions of section 6.1.2 et. seq., will be given preferred consideration with respect to the Unit Member's Request for assignment in a regular semester if, by the deadline for receipt of the assignment request form, all of the following apply:
  - 6.2.1.1 the Unit Member has completed at least a thirty-three (33) percent load for each of four (4) regular semesters within the previous six (6) consecutive regular semesters within the department or area offering the requested assignment(s), including the semester by which the request form must be submitted;
  - 6.2.1.2 the Unit Member has no overall "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory" administrative evaluations during the applicable previous six (6) consecutive regular semesters;
  - 6.2.1.3 the Unit Member has not declined, in whole or in part, two offers of assignment during the applicable previous six (6) consecutive regular semesters.
- 6.2.2 Accordance of preferred consideration for assignments shall be subject to the following, as determined by the District;

- 6.2.2.1 the availability of requested assignments after regular and contract faculty schedules have been finalized:
- 6.2.2.2 the Unit Member's qualifications for the requested assignment(s), including, but not limited to, the Unit Member's possession of adequate preparation for the assignment through appropriate education or experience, possession of the effective skills relevant to the assignment, possession of particular expertise relevant to the assignment, recency of education preparation, experience and skills relevant to the assignment, prior successful service in the assignment within the department, and recency of performance of the requested assignment within the department;
- 6.2.2.3 the Unit Member's past performance during the applicable previous six (6) consecutive regular semesters, including, but not limited to, prior performance evaluations, compliance with employee responsibilities as provided in this Agreement, and other indicators of performance;
- 6.2.2.4 the need to promote diversity, particular expertise, and recency of skill sets within the department or area.
- 6.2.3 In the event of a conflict among equally qualified Unit Members who have submitted timely and valid requests for assignment and who meet the requirements for preferred consideration of their requests, priority for assignment will normally be accorded the Unit Member with the greatest length of service. Length of service shall be determined by the number of regular semesters of actual service, after July 1, 1997, as a Unit Member within the department offering the requested assignment(s). In the event the Unit Members have equal length of service within the department, any conflict in assignment requests shall be decided by the Immediate Management Supervisor.
- 6.2.4 A Unit Member who is granted an approved Legislative or Organizational Leave pursuant to the provisions of Article 14, and is eligible for preferred assignment consideration at the time the leave is granted, shall retain the Unit Member's length of service position and shall be entitled to preferred status upon return from the leave.
- 6.2.5 Reemployment preference for an assignment shall apply to the initial scheduling process for each semester.
- 6.2.6 Each fall semester, the Immediate Management Supervisor will publish a list of adjunct faculty who have met the eligibility criteria for reemployment preference for teaching, counseling, and librarian assignments for the next academic year (RP List). Human Resources will provide the RP List to the Association. Unit Members may update their availability time frame and courses desired to teach on the Adjunct Faculty Assignment Request (AFAR) Form up to the point where the scheduling process is initiated as determined by the IMS.
- 6.2.7 Adjunct Faculty Date (AF Date) The first date of actual assignment as a Unit Member. In the event the Unit Member does not perform an assignment for a period of 18 months or more, the AF Date will be the date of assignment after being rehired.

# 6.3 <u>Conditions of Employment</u>

- 6.3.1 Adjunct faculty are temporary employees; the District may employ adjunct faculty on a temporary basis, as needed, either during a specific academic term, or from term to term, at its discretion. The District shall retain all customary and usual powers, functions and authority with respect to the employment, retention and termination of temporary faculty members to the full extent of the law, any provisions of this Agreement notwithstanding.
- 6.3.2 Unless specifically approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee, the employment of adjunct faculty during any term shall not exceed, for all assignments within the District, sixty-seven (67) percent of the load of scheduled duties for a full-time regular faculty member having comparable duties averaged over the semester. The District shall have the authority to make and terminate any

assignments of Unit Members in a manner that will ensure that the workload of each Unit Member does not exceed sixty-seven (67) percent of the load of scheduled duties for a full-time regular faculty member having comparable duties averaged over the semester. No Unit Member shall be employed to provide academic services within the District who does not possess the appropriate minimum qualifications to render service in the assignment.

- 6.3.3 To facilitate the assignment and scheduling of Unit Members, the District may, either on the form on which Unit Members may request assignments as provided in section 6.1.1 of this Article, or by other means of inquiry, solicit information as to the days and times when a Unit Member might be available to perform assignments. However, any such inquiry by the District as to the days and times when a Unit Member might be available to perform assignments, or any provision of such information by a Unit Member, is intended solely to assist the District in considering the assignment requests of Unit Members.
- 6.3.4 The scheduling and assignment of work for Unit Members who are offered employment shall be at the sole discretion of the District. Unit Members shall not be entitled to any particular assignment, load, or pattern of assignments on the basis of any previous employment or assignment with the District. Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or restrict the District's right to make and schedule assignments, or to add or eliminate course sections or other assignments at any time.
- 6.3.5 Unit Members who meet the eligibility requirements for reemployment preference and whose name appears on the RP List shall be entitled to receive an assignment of at least twenty percent (20%) of a full load based on AF Date, so long as the Unit Member is available to teach the class and there are sufficient class sections available. An assignment offered to and accepted by the Unit Member may not be preempted to fill either a canceled overload assignment or an overload request made after finalization of the assignment of a contract or regular faculty member.
- 6.3.6 It is understood that although a Unit Member may meet the requirements for preferred consideration of the Unit Member's request for assignment as provided in section 6.2 of this article, this does not create any guarantee, right, or entitlement of the Unit Member to assignment or employment, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any obligation of the District to employ, renew the employment of, retain, or continue the employment of any Unit Member, nor in any manner obligate the District to consider or award assignments on specific days, at specific times, in specific classrooms, or at specific locations.
  - 6.3.6.1 However, in the event a Unit Member who submits a timely and valid request for assignment as provided in section 6.1.2 of this Article and who meets the requirements for preferred consideration of the Unit Member's request for assignment as provided in section 6.2.1 of this Article is not offered the requested assignment, the Unit Member shall be entitled to receive, upon request, a written statement of the reason(s).
  - 6.3.6.2 Reemployment preference eligibility may be lost in the following ways: (1) failure to timely submit a completed AFAR form; (2) receiving an overall unsatisfactory evaluation; (3) receiving an overall needs improvement evaluation for two consecutive semesters; and (4) Unit Member has not taught for two consecutive semesters. In the event a Unit Member loses his/her reemployment preference eligibility, the Unit Member will be required to reestablish reemployment preference status.
  - 6.3.6.3 The provision by the District of the reason(s) for not offering the assignment shall be final, shall not be subject to the grievance provisions of Article 16 of this Agreement, and shall not be construed to create any obligation of the District to show cause for not offering the assignment nor in any way impair the District's authority with respect to the employment, retention, and termination of temporary faculty members to the full extent of the law.

#### 6.4 Withdrawal and Cancellation of Assignments

- 6.4.1 A class or nonteaching assignment offered to a Unit Member may be withdrawn by the District at any time if it is needed to fill the normal load of a contract or regular faculty member. An assignment offered to a Unit Member may not be preempted to fill a canceled overload assignment of a contract or regular faculty member.
- 6.4.2 A class that has been offered to a Unit Member may be cancelled by the District at any time prior to the first class session or at any time during the term of the assignment if the number of students enrolled is fewer than the minimum number established by the District or if conditions arise, as determined by the District, which make maintaining the class impractical.
- 6.4.3 A nonteaching assignment that has been offered to a Unit Member may be cancelled by the District at any time before the first scheduled duty day for the assignment or at any time during the term of the assignment if conditions arise, as determined by the District, which make maintaining the assignment impractical.
- 6.4.4 A Unit Member whose assignment is withdrawn or cancelled shall not be entitled to any reassignment to replace the withdrawn or cancelled assignment.
- 6.5 The provisions of this Article with respect to preferred consideration of a Unit Member's request for assignment shall not apply to the employment of the Unit Members during any summer session or intersession, or to substitute or "as needed" assignments.

#### **WORKING CONDITIONS**

- 7.1 Unit Members who perform assignments at the colleges shall have one designated official mailbox on campus during the term of their assignment.
- 7.2 If authorized in advance by the President/Provost or designee, a Unit Member may receive reimbursement for business mileage related to the Unit Member's assignment for travel off-campus in accordance with District policy; however, no mileage reimbursement will be allowed for commuting within the District where a Unit Member has accepted assignments at multiple sites. Mileage requests shall be submitted to the Unit Member's Immediate Management Supervisor.
- 7.3 In the absence of a separate and express written agreement between a Unit Member and the District to the contrary, a Unit Member shall have the exclusive property right to materials, devices and processes developed by the Unit Member, provided that the Unit Member shall reimburse the District for any property owned by the District and physically incorporated in such materials or devices. The District will neither recognize nor honor the claim of any Unit Member to compensation from the District under an implied contract based upon the use of any materials, devices or processes developed by a Unit Member and used by the Unit Member in the course of employment with the District.
- 7.4 Parking for Unit Members who perform regular assignments at Cypress College, Fullerton College and the Anaheim Campus will be granted in the designated areas free of charge.
- 7.5 Upon request, the Immediate Management Supervisor will provide Unit Members new to the department or area with information regarding division services and supplies, absence reporting procedures, record reporting procedures and deadlines, division hours and contact persons, meetings, training and other department activities related to the Unit Member's assignment.
- 7.6 In accordance with established campus, division and department procedures, Unit Members shall have reasonable access to the usual and customary teaching supplies and instructional equipment for use in the classroom that are available to full-time faculty within the department. It is understood that such supplies and equipment for use in the classroom may not be accessible at the time of a Unit Member's classroom assignment where the assignment does not coincide with the operating schedule of the department, division or facility from which the supplies or equipment would be obtained.

# 7.7 <u>Employee Responsibilities</u>

- 7.7.1 Unit Members shall be responsible for compliance with District and campus policies and procedures, to the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, and for compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 7.7.2 Unit Members shall be responsible for the timely submission of attendance records and grades and compliance with other administrative and clerical requirements as directed.
- 7.7.3 Unit Members shall be responsible for compliance with campus exit/clearance processes, as directed, for the return of equipment, keys, parking passes and library cards and materials and other District property at the conclusion of their assignments.
- 7.7.4 Unit Members shall maintain a current address and telephone number with the District Office of Human Resources and shall provide written notice within thirty (30) days of any change.
- 7.7.5 Unit Members shall regularly check their NOCCCD issued email account a minimum of once a week and shall use their NOCCCD issued email account for conducting NOCCCD business.

7.7.6 Unit Members shall be responsible for providing reasonable accommodations to students enrolled in their classes as developed and approved through the office of disability services.

# 7.8 Ancillary Activities

- 7.8.1 The District and the Union agree that pursuant to the provisions of section 87482.5(c)(1) of the Education Code, any service in professional ancillary activities by Unit Members, whether paid or unpaid, shall not be used for purposes of calculating eligibility for contract or regular status with the District.
- 7.8.2 Ancillary activities include, but are not limited to, the following:
  - 7.8.2.1 Service on District or campus governance committees, including, but not limited to, budget committees, advisory councils, cabinets, accreditation committees, master planning committees, program review committees, etc.;
  - 7.8.2.2 Service on search committees:
  - 7.8.2.3 Service on evaluation committees;
  - 7.8.2.4 Participation in department and division meetings and activities;
  - 7.8.2.5 Service on academic/faculty senates;
  - 7.8.2.6 Curriculum and course development projects;
  - 7.8.2.7 Advising student organizations;
  - 7.8.2.8 Providing tutoring services to students outside of class;
  - 7.8.2.9 Grant writing, implementation and management;
  - 7.8.2.10 Participation in, preparation for, or presentation of District-sponsored Professional Development/activities.
- 7.8.3 Unit Members serving on Academic Senate, District Consultation Council, Technology Coordinating Council, and Council on Budget and Facilities shall be compensated for their service on these committees.
  - 7.8.3.1 Adjunct Senators shall be compensated for attending Academic Senate meetings not to exceed four hours of pay per month at their regular rate, except Credit Instructors at the lab rate.
  - 7.8.3.2 The Unit Member shall be compensated for attending District Consultation Council not to exceed two hours of pay per month at their regular rate, except Credit Instructors at the lab rate.
  - 7.8.3.3 The Unit Member shall be compensated for attending Technology Coordinating Council not to exceed two hours of pay per month at their regular rate, except Credit Instructors at the lab rate.
  - 7.8.3.4 The Unit Member shall be compensated for attending Council on Budget and Facilities not to exceed four hours of pay per month at their regular rate, except Credit Instructors at the lab rate.
  - 7.8.3.5 President's Advisory Council (Cypress and Fullerton): Unit Members shall be compensated for attending PAC not to exceed four hours of pay per month at their lab rate.

- 7.8.3.6. President's Cabinet (NOCE): Unit Members shall be compensated for attending President's Cabinet not to exceed two hours of pay per month at their regular rate.
- 7.8.4 Compensation for ancillary duties listed in this section will be paid fifty (\$50.00) per hour, unless otherwise authorized per section 7.8.5.
  - 7.8.4.1 Unit Members serving on a search committee for authorized committee work will be compensated for attending committee meetings and application evaluation.

Number of applications	Hours Compensated	
1-25	2 hours	
26-50	4 hours	
51-75	6 hours	
76-100	8 hours	
101-125	10 hours	
126-150	12 hours	
151-175	14 hours	
176-200+	16 hours	

- 7.8.4.2 Opening Day: Unit Members (Credit/Non-Credit) shall be compensated for attending Opening Day, not to exceed two hours for credit and three hours for non-credit.
- 7.8.4.3 Credit Unit Members shall be compensated for attending Division/Department meetings on Flex Day or Opening Day, not to exceed two hours.
- 7.8.4.4 Non-Credit Unit Members shall be compensated for attending Department meetings prior to the first day of instruction of the Fall and Spring semesters, not to exceed two hours.
- 7.8.4.5 Adjunct Orientation: Unit Members shall be compensated one time for attending the District Adjunct Orientation, not to exceed four hours.
- 7.8.4.6 Leadership Academy: Unit Members shall be compensated for participating and completing the Leadership Academy Program, not to exceed sixty hours.
- 7.8.4.7 Unit Members shall be required to track ancillary duty hours worked and approved each month by the Division on the District provided timesheet. Unit Members shall submit timesheets to the Division by the first day of the following month in which the work was performed.
- 7.8.5 Unit Members may be compensated for other ancillary duties as approved in advance by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee.

#### **MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- 8.1 The District retains all of its rights, powers, functions and authority to direct, manage and control the affairs of the District to the full extent of the law but not in violation of the law. Such exclusive rights and powers of the District include, but are not limited to:
  - 8.1.1 The right to establish educational policies, goals and objectives and to ensure rights and educational opportunities for students;
  - 8.1.2 The right to determine the kinds and levels of service to be provided to the students and to the public and the nature, methods, quantity, quality, frequency and standards of providing such service, including the facilities, supplies, materials and equipment to be used in connection with such service;
  - 8.1.3 The right to determine its organizational structure, including staffing patterns and the number and kinds of personnel required;
  - 8.1.4 The right to determine times and hours of operation and the right to assign, schedule, and direct the work of employees and determine standards of performance;
  - 8.1.5 The right to hire, discipline and terminate employees;
  - 8.1.6 The right to determine its financial structure, including decisions relating to sources of District income, budgetary matters and procedures, payroll practices, fiscal and budget control policies and procedures and budgetary allocations, reserves and expenditures;
  - 8.1.7 The right to build, move or modify facilities;
  - 8.1.8 The right to require employees to comply with District, college and North Orange Continuing Education rules and regulations not inconsistent with this Agreement;
- 8.2 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with the law.
- 8.3 It is further understood and agreed that all rights heretofore exercised by, or inherent in the District, and not expressly contracted away by terms of this Agreement, are retained solely by the District. Failure by the District to exercise any of said rights, or to exercise them in a particular manner, shall not be deemed as a waiver of such rights or preclude the District thereafter from exercising them in some manner at the discretion of the District.
- The contractual rights of the Union and Unit Members are set forth in other articles of this Agreement. This Article is not a source of such rights and accordingly, no grievances may be filed under this Article.

#### **EVALUATION**

#### 9.1 Purpose of Evaluation

- 9.1.1 The purpose of the program of evaluation for adjunct faculty is to improve instruction and support services by providing assessment that recognizes and acknowledges good performance and identifies areas needing improvement.
- 9.1.2 If requested by the Unit Member, the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee will recommend the names of faculty members, if any, who may be willing to provide assistance as mentors in preparing for evaluations and during the evaluation process.
- 9.1.3 It is the intent of the parties that evaluations are to be conducted in a supportive, collegial, and nonpunitive manner.

# 9.2 <u>Frequency of Evaluation</u>

- 9.2.1 Unit Members shall be evaluated in the first regular semester of paid service, if feasible, but not later than the second regular semester of paid service, and at least once every six (6) regular semesters of paid service thereafter.
- 9.2.2 Unit Members shall be evaluated at each school where the Unit Members teach classes or are assigned in accordance with current evaluation procedures.
- 9.2.3 Where a Unit Member is on a leave of absence during the semester for which the evaluation would normally be scheduled, such evaluation shall be conducted in the first full semester upon the Unit Member's return to service. Postponement or delay of the evaluation, as provided in this section, shall not affect the schedule of subsequent evaluations.

#### 9.3 Components of Evaluation

- 9.3.1 The evaluation process shall include the following components:
  - 9.3.1.1 an assessment of the Unit Member's performance by the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee which shall include a classroom/worksite observation of duration not less than thirty (30) minutes, but which shall not exceed one (1) class period in the case of classroom observation, or ninety (90) minutes in the case of other worksite observation. For classes employing distance education technologies, the evaluator will provide specific information to clarify the details associated with the evaluation process, including the amount of time needed for access to the learning management system and the access level required (TA, instructor, student);
  - 9.3.1.2 a review by the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee of classroom/worksite and other job-related materials prepared by the Unit member, provided that for non-credit programs where the Unit Member does not regularly prepare job-related materials, they are not required to be reviewed:
  - 9.3.1.3 student evaluations, which shall be administered by the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee;
  - 9.3.1.4 an assessment of the Unit Member's performance by a peer reviewer, if elected by the Unit Member pursuant to section 9.5.
- 9.3.2 Where the Unit Member has students who are incapable of providing feedback, or where evaluation by students is clearly impractical, the requirement for administration of student evaluations may be waived

or modified by mutual agreement of the Immediate Management Supervisor and the Unit Member, and the reasons made part of the evaluation report.

#### 9.4 Administrative Evaluation

- 9.4.1 Within the first four weeks of the semester in which the evaluation is to occur, the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee will provide those Unit Members to be evaluated with an evaluation packet consisting of the following:
  - 9.4.1.1 Instructions which outline the evaluation process;
  - 9.4.1.2 A copy of the Performance Evaluation form;
  - 9.4.1.3 A list of job-related materials such as course syllabi, samples of assignments, examinations, class handouts, faculty to student communications, etc., to be submitted for review and the date by which such materials are to be submitted, which shall be not less than fourteen (14) calendar days form the date of notice.
- 9.4.2 The Immediate Management Supervisor or designee shall conduct a classroom/worksite observation which shall be scheduled subsequent to the first quarter and prior to the last eighth of the term.
  - 9.4.2.1 At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to observation, the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee will provide the Unit Member with notification of not more than three alternate dates and approximate times during which the classroom/worksite observation may be conducted.
  - 9.4.2.2 A designee who conducts a classroom/worksite observation may be any of the following: another academic administrator; a management program assistant; a full-time faculty member; an adjunct faculty member; a professional expert with teaching experience.
- 9.4.3 At least fourteen (14) calendar days in advance, the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee will provide the Unit Member with notification of the dates, classes or other circumstances during which student evaluations will be administered.
  - 9.4.3.1 The Unit Member shall leave the classroom prior to the administration of the student evaluations (Appendixes B-4 through B-6).
  - 9.4.3.2 The student evaluation forms (or other raw data) shall be retained by the Immediate Management Supervisor until the final grades have been posted, after which time they shall be provided to the Unit Member, if requested by the Unit Member within ninety (90) calendar days of the last instructional day of the term for which the Unit Member was evaluated.
- 9.4.4 Evaluations shall use the Adjunct Faculty Evaluation Form (Appendixes B-1 through B-3) as appropriate by the assignment of the Unit Member and shall result in a rating for each evaluative criterion and an overall rating of "excellent," "satisfactory," "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory." Evaluations shall be based upon the criteria set forth in the Adjunct Faculty Evaluation Forms. The evaluation of distance education classes shall also adhere to distance education guidelines as provided in course outlines, department distance education guidelines, distance education campus handbooks, and the Online Education Initiative (OEI) rubric. Evaluations shall not include assessment of the Unit Member's participation in extracurricular activities that are not reasonably related to, and comprehended within, the scope of the Unit Member's instructional or other academic assignment.
- 9.4.5 The assessment of the Immediate Management Supervisor or designee and a summary of the results of the student evaluations shall be recorded on the appropriate performance evaluation form.
- 9.4.6 The Unit Member shall be sent the completed performance evaluation no later than 14 business days after the end of semester to their District issued email address.

- 9.4.6.1 Within fourteen (14) business days of the date of emailing of the evaluation form, the Unit Member shall sign and return the performance evaluation form to the Immediate Management Supervisor. The Unit Member shall have the right to enter and attach a response to the performance evaluation form.
- 9.4.6.2 The Unit Member may also attach to the performance evaluation form a written request for a post-evaluation conference with the evaluator to discuss the results of the evaluation. If so requested by the Unit Member, a post-evaluation conference shall be scheduled at a time reasonably convenient to the Unit Member and Immediate Management Supervisor.
- 9.4.6.3 The performance evaluation form and the Unit Member's attached response, if any, will be placed in the Unit Member's personnel file.
- 9.4.6.4 If the Unit Member does not sign and return the evaluation form and any permitted attachments by the deadline specified in section 9.4.6.1, a notation to that effect shall be made on the performance evaluation form by the Immediate Management Supervisor and the completed performance evaluation form will be placed in the Unit Member's personnel file.
- 9.4.7 In the event the evaluation results in unsatisfactory ratings or recommendations for improvement, a follow-up evaluation may be conducted at the discretion of the Immediate Management Supervisor. The follow-up evaluation will be placed in the Unit Member's personnel file.
- 9.4.8 Where the Unit Member's assignment during the term of evaluation is less than the full duration of the semester, the evaluation process shall be conducted in accordance with timelines developed by the Immediate Management Supervisor, after consultation with the Unit Member.
- 9.4.9 In the event the Unit Member is not available for classroom/worksite observation on any of the alternative dates as provided in section 9.4.2.1, or the instructional/worksite activities being conducted on those dates are not appropriate for evaluation as determined by the evaluator, the classroom/worksite observation may be scheduled at the convenience of the evaluator.

#### 9.5 Peer Evaluation

- 9.5.1 During the semester for which the administrative evaluation is to be conducted, the Unit Member may select another Unit Member or full-time faculty member who is currently employed by the District within the Unit Member's department or division to conduct a peer evaluation. Participation in the evaluation process by a faculty member selected as a peer evaluator shall be voluntary.
- 9.5.2 A faculty member selected as a peer evaluator shall not have participated in the most recent evaluation of the Unit Member being evaluated.
- 9.5.3 Peer evaluations shall use the Adjunct Faculty Evaluation Form (Appendixes B-1 through B-3) as appropriate to the assignment of the Unit Member and shall result in a rating for each evaluative criterion and an overall rating of "excellent," "satisfactory," "needs improvement," or "unsatisfactory."
- 9.5.4 At the option of the Unit Member being evaluated, a copy of the peer evaluation may be forwarded to the District Office of Human Resources for inclusion in the Unit Member's personnel file.

## **CLASS SIZE/MULTIPLE SECTION**

- 10.1 The class size for courses taught by Unit Members shall be established in accordance with the provisions applying to regular and contract faculty.
- 10.2 The number of students a Unit Member may be required to enroll in a class shall not exceed the established class size, except where a class is established as a multiple section.

#### 10.3 Multiple Sections

- 10.3.1 If authorized by the President or designee, a class may be established as a multiple section, or any established multiple section may be increased, either prior to the first day of any instructional period or subsequent to the start of instruction.
  - 10.3.1.1 Where a class has been established as a multiple section at the time the class is offered for assignment to a Unit Member, the Unit Member shall be informed that the class is a multiple section.
  - 10.3.1.2 After a unit Member has accepted an offer of assignment for a class, a subsequent change which involves creating or increasing a multiple section may be implemented with the agreement of the Unit Member.
- 10.3.2 Multiple section classes shall be computed on the basis of the established class size, subject to the following:
  - 10.3.2.1 A class scheduled as a one and one half section must attain eighty (80) percent of its established class size on the census date or it will be reclassified as single section class.
  - 10.3.2.2 A scheduled double section must attain ninety (90) percent of its established maximize size on the census date to count as a double section. If it does not attain ninety (90) percent, the double section will be reclassified as a one and one-half section. If this reclassed one and one-half section does not attain eighty (80) percent of its established class multiple section size, it will be reclassed as a single section.
  - 10.3.2.3 A scheduled triple section must attain ninety (90) percent of its established multiple section class size on the census date to count as a triple section. If it does not attain ninety (90) percent, the triple section will be reclassified as a two and one-half section. If this reclassed two and one-half section does not attain ninety (90) percent, it will be reclassed as a double section. If this reclassed double section does not attain ninety (90) percent of its established class multiple section size, it will be reclassified as one and one-half section. If this reclassed one and one-half section does not attain eighty (80) percent, it will be reclassed as a single section.
- 10.3.3 Multiple section classes shall not be assigned for classes where the attendance accounting method does not involve a census date.
- 10.3.4 A Unit Member who teaches an authorized multiple section class will be compensated for the class at a multiple of the Unit Member's rate per instructional unit, as follows:
  - 10.3.4.1 a one and one-half section will be compensated at one hundred fifty (150) percent of the Unit Member's rate per unit;
  - 10.3.4.2 a double section will be compensated at two hundred (200) percent of the Unit Member's rate per unit;

- 10.3.4.3 a two and one-half section will be compensated at two hundred fifty (250) percent of the Unit Member's rate per unit;
- 10.3.4.4 a triple section will be compensated at three hundred (300) percent of the Unit Member's rate per unit.
- 10.3.5 Payment for a multiple section class is intended to compensate the Unit Member for the increased number of students within the same class. Since this will not change the Unit Member's teaching hour obligation for the class, it is the expressed intent of the Union and the District that an multiple section class shall count only as a single section for purposes of computing the maximum allowable load computation for adjunct faculty assignments; the multiple section portion of the class shall be excluded from the computation of the service required as a prerequisite to attainment of, or eligibility for, classification as a contract or regular employee of the District.
- 10.4 The provisions of this Article shall not apply to noncredit courses.

#### **SALARY**

- 11.1 For their services as adjunct faculty, Unit Members will be paid according to the Adjunct Faculty Salary Schedule, incorporated herein as Appendix A.
- 11.2 Credit instructor assignments will be paid at the rate per instructional unit specified in Schedule A of the Adjunct Faculty Salary Schedule. Counselor and librarian assignments will be paid at the hourly rates specified in Schedule B of the Adjunct Faculty Salary Schedule.

#### 11.2.1 Initial Salary Column Placement

- 11.2.1.1 Initial salary column placement for Schedule A or Schedule B shall be established on the basis of the highest academic degree required to meet the minimum qualifications for the discipline of initial assignment with the District as an adjunct faculty member.
- 11.2.1.2 Approved units beyond the degree used to satisfy the minimum qualifications for the discipline of initial assignment may be used for advance column placement in accordance with the provisions of sections 11.2.3.2 and 11.2.3.3, below.

#### 11.2.2 <u>Initial Salary Step Placement</u>

- 11.2.2.1 New Unit Members compensated on Schedule A shall be placed on Step 1 of the schedule. For purposes of this section, a new Unit Member is a Unit Member who has not been previously placed and paid on Schedule A.
- 11.2.2.2 New Unit Members compensated on Schedule B shall be placed on Step 1 of the schedule. For purposes of this section, a new Unit Member is a Unit Member who has not been previously placed and paid on Schedule B.
- 11.2.2.3 Unit Members who have been initially placed in accordance with the above provisions, and who return after a break in service, shall be placed at the same salary step held immediately prior to the break in service.
- 11.2.2.4 Unit Members who have retired from NOCCCD as a fulltime faculty, counselor, or librarian, shall be placed on the appropriate schedule at step 3.

#### 11.2.3 Salary Column Advancement

- 11.2.3.1 Approved units of course work completed subsequent to initial salary placement may be applied toward salary column advancement.
- 11.2.3.2 Lower division, upper division and graduate units related to the Unit Member's assignment qualify for advancement from Column I to Column II. However, not more than fifteen (15) lower division units may qualify toward Column II advancement. All units are equated as semester units; quarter units will be converted to semester units on a ratio of one (1) quarter unit equaling two-thirds (2/3) semester unit
- 11.2.3.3 Advancement to Column III shall require an earned doctoral degree. A four (4) year baccalaureate degree and three (3) years of graduate law school, terminating in the degree of LLB/JD will qualify for doctorate placement.
- 11.2.3.4 Salary column advancement shall be limited to one (1) column per academic year and will be authorized only after the Unit Member has filed a request for such advancement, on a form provided by the District, and has submitted evidence satisfactory to the District

substantiating the request. Required documentation must be submitted to the District Office of Human Resources on or before the second Friday in August of the academic year for which the column advancement is requested to become effective and must be approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee.

- 11.2.3.4.1 Lower division course work must be approved in advance by the Immediate Management Supervisor.
- 11.2.3.4.2 Upper division and graduate level course work is strongly recommended that the Unit Member confer with the Immediate Management Supervisor prior to taking any course(s).
- 11.2.3.4.3 Salary column adjustments will not be made during the academic year.

#### 11.2.4 Salary Step Advancement

Effective Fall 2019, salary step advancement will automatically be applied for unit members who meet the following criteria:

- 11.2.4.1 Salary step progression on Schedule A shall be based exclusively upon service with the District, with eligibility for step advancement after:
  - 11.2.4.1.1 Four (4) regular semesters of credit instruction at the previous step. One (1) semester of service is defined as teaching of at least one full semester course or its equivalent.
- 11.2.4.2 Salary step progression on Schedule B shall be based exclusively upon service with the District, with eligibility for step advancement after:
  - 11.2.4.2.1 Four (4) regular semesters of counseling or librarian service at the previous step. One (1) semester of service is defined as the completion of the assignment for the semester.
- 11.2.4.3 Service during any summer session or intersession, or service in substitute or "as needed" assignments shall not be applied toward eligibility for salary step advancement.
- 11.2.4.4 The salary step advancement will be applied at the beginning of the next regular semester after the eligibility requirements have been met.
- 11.3 Noncredit instruction assignments will be paid at the hourly rates specified in Schedule C of the Adjunct Faculty Hourly Salary Schedule.

#### 11.3.1 Initial Salary Placement

- 11.3.1.1 Initial salary column placement for Schedule C shall be Column I for Unit Members who possess an earned associate degree or baccalaureate degree. Initial salary column placement shall be Column II for Unit Members who possess an earned master's degree. Initial salary column placement shall be Column III for Unit Members who possess an earned doctoral degree. A four (4) year baccalaureate degree and three (3) years of graduate law school, terminating in a degree of LLB/JD, will qualify for doctorate placement.
- 11.3.1.2 New Unit Members compensated on Schedule C shall be placed on Step 1 of the schedule. For purposes of this section, a new Unit Member is a Unit Member who has not been previously placed and paid on Schedule C.

- 11.3.1.3 Unit Members who have been initially placed in accordance with the above provisions, and who return after a break in service, shall be placed at the same salary step held immediately prior to the break in service.
- 11.3.1.4 Unit Members who have retired from NOCCCD as a fulltime non-credit faculty, counselor, or librarian, shall be placed on the appropriate schedule at step 3.

#### 11.3.2 Salary Advancement

- 11.3.2.1 A Unit Member who is initially placed on Column I of Schedule C and who subsequently earns a master's degree may be advanced to Column II or for an earned doctoral degree may be advanced to Column III. Placement on Column II or III will be authorized only after the Unit Member has filed a request for such advancement, on a form provided by the District, and has submitted evidence satisfactory to the District substantiating the request. Required documentation must be submitted to the District Office of Human Resources on or before the second Friday in August of the academic year for which the column advancement is requested to become effective and must be approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee.
  - 11.3.2.1.1 Lower division course work must be approved in advance by the Immediate Management Supervisor.
  - 11.3.2.1.2 Upper division and graduate level course work is strongly recommended that the Unit Member confer with the Immediate Management Supervisor prior to taking any course(s).
  - 11.3.2.1.3 Salary column adjustments will not be made during the academic year.
- 11.3.2.2 Effective Fall 2020, salary step advancement will automatically be applied for unit members who meet the following criteria:
  - 11.3.2.2.1 Salary step progression on Schedule C shall be based exclusively upon service with the District, with eligibility for step advancement after four (4) regular semesters of noncredit teaching service at the previous step. One semester of service is defined as the completion of the assignment for the semester.
  - 11.3.2.2.2 Service during any summer session or intersession, or service in substitute or "as needed" assignments shall not be applied toward eligibility for salary step advancement.
  - 11.3.2.2.3 The salary step advancement will be applied at the beginning of the next regular semester after the eligibility requirements have been met.
- 11.4 All degrees and coursework used for initial salary placement and salary advancement must be earned from an accredited institution listed in the Directory of Accredited Institutions of Postsecondary Education, published for the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation by the American Council on Education.
- 11.5 Effective Fall 2025, Compensation For Lecture, Lab, Out of class preparation and Other outside related instructional duties for Credit and Non-Credit Instructional Unit Members.
  - 11.5.1 The Parties agree to define the compensation as delineated on the Adjunct Faculty Salary, Schedule A and Schedule C. The amount of compensation is to fulfill the academic assignment including lecture, lab, out of class preparation and other outside related instructional duties for Credit and Non-Credit Instructional Unit Members. This is consistent with the parties past practice for compensation of instructional Unit Members.

- 11.5.2 Out of class preparation and other outside related duties may include, but are not limited to, course and instructional material preparation, lecture preparation, lab preparation, instructor initiated/course outline of record field trips, exam preparation, grading, regular and substantive interaction with students, classroom syllabi preparation, selecting course texts and other instructional materials, Student Learning Outcomes activities, learning management system, completing legally required training, evaluation process participation, and communication with District employees and external partners in your role with the District.
- 11.5.3 Instructional Unit Members are not permitted to work in excess of the assigned course units or non-credit hours. Prior written approval from the IMS is required before performing any additional work. If additional work is authorized, it is agreed and understood the compensation for the additional work will be paid at twenty dollars (\$20.00) an hour.
- 11.5.4 Acknowledgment/Certification Instructional Unit Members will sign an acknowledgment that their professional rate of pay includes lecture, lab, out of class preparation, and other outside related instructional duties as delineated in 11.5.2. This acknowledgment shall be submitted with the instructional assignment offer.

The Instructional Unit Member will submit a certification that compensation was received in accordance with this section. This certification shall be submitted on a District form by the last day of instruction. The 2025/2026 academic year is dedicated to implementing this new section. Commencing the 2026/2027 academic year, if an Instructional Unit Member fails to submit the certification by the deadline, the Instructional Unit Member will be provided with a reminder. The Instructional Unit Member may lose their teaching assignment(s) if the certification is not submitted after the reminder.

- 11.5.5 This section does not change the Instructional Credit and Non-Credit Unit Members reporting of time or attendance processes. No additional compensation shall be paid without prior written approval by the IMS.
- 11.5.6 This section applies to all course units and/or non-credit hours assigned during any regular semester or intersession.
- 11.5.7 Any dispute related to this article shall be subject to the grievance procedure in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 11.6 Nursing Faculty Clinical Compensation
  - 11.6.1 Effective August 24, 2015, the nursing faculty clinical practicum will be compensated at the lecture rate.
- 11.7 Extensive Laboratory Compensation
  - 11.7.1 The laboratory hour for all courses established as Extensive Laboratory will be compensated at 1 to 1 or 100 percent of a lecture hour.

#### **BENEFITS**

- For qualifying Unit Members, and subject to all of the terms and conditions as provided in this Article, the District will reimburse up to one thousand dollars (\$1,000) per regular semester, for insurance premiums paid by the Unit Member during the semester to an independent health care plan in which the Unit Member is enrolled. The total amount of the District's reimbursement to any Unit Member shall not exceed two thousand dollars (\$2,000) in any fiscal year and shall apply only to premiums paid for health coverage of the Unit Member. Effective July 1, 2022, for qualifying Unit Members, and subject to all of the terms and conditions as provided in this Article, the District will reimburse up to one thousand one hundred dollars (\$1,100) per regular semester, for insurance premiums paid by the Unit Member during the semester to an independent health care plan in which the Unit Member is enrolled. The total amount of the District's reimbursement to any Unit Member shall not exceed two thousand two hundred dollars (\$2,200) in any fiscal year and shall apply only to premiums paid for health coverage of the Unit Member.
- 12.2 To qualify for the insurance premium reimbursement, a Unit Member shall meet the following eligibility requirements:
  - 12.2.1 The Unit Member must not be otherwise eligible for or enrolled in health care coverage, as an employee, spouse, domestic partner, or dependent, under a health insurance program sponsored or paid, in full or in part, by another employer.
  - 12.2.2 The Unit Member must be actively employed during a regular semester in a teaching, counseling or librarian assignment with a load of at least thirty-three (33) percent and must have been employed by the District as an adjunct faculty member in a teaching, counseling or librarian assignment for at least three (3) regular semesters in the previous five (5) regular semesters.
- 12.3 Eligibility For District Contributions Towards Medical Benefits
  - 12.3.1 If the load of a Unit Member who is otherwise eligible as provided in section 12.2 declines to less than thirty-three (33) percent due to assignment cancellation or bumping prior to the fifteenth calendar day of the semester, the Unit Member will not be eligible for the insurance premium reimbursement for that semester. If the load of a Unit Member who is otherwise eligible as provided in section 12.2 declines to less than thirty-three (33) percent due to assignment cancellation or bumping after the fourteenth calendar day of the semester, the Unit Member will retain eligibility for the insurance premium reimbursement for that semester. However, any voluntary action by the Unit Member which causes the Unit Member's load to decline below thirty-three (33) percent will terminate the Unit Member's eligibility for that semester.
  - 12.3.2 NOCCCD FORTY PERCENT (40%) ASSIGNMENT ELIGIBILITY: Unit Members enrolled in CalSTRS whose NOCCCD assignment equals or exceeds forty percent (40%) of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment per semester (as defined by Ed Code section 87861) are eligible to enroll in NOCCCD medical insurance benefits. Unit Members are not eligible to participate in the District's fringe benefits allowance and life insurance programs.
    - 12.3.2.1 Unit Members meeting the forty percent (40%) NOCCCD assignment eligibility per semester shall be eligible to enroll and receive medical District premium contributions. The District contribution has no cash value and can only be used to enroll in benefits offered by NOCCCD.
    - 12.3.2.2 The District will pay the cost of the employee-only premium for eligible Unit Members meeting the assignment eligibility of forty percent (40%) or more per semester. Effective January 2026 the District will contribute a maximum up to \$11,359.32 annually towards one dependent care medical premiums. Effective January 1, 2026, the District will contribute a maximum up to \$18,174.84 annually towards family plan medical premiums.

If the Kaiser other Southern California rate increases in excess of the January 2027 District contribution amounts effective January 2027, the District will increase the District contribution for employee plus one and family for the 2027 benefit year, not to exceed the 2026-2027 funded Cost of Living Allowance (COLA) percentage.

- 12.3.2.3 In the event that a Unit Member selects a plan which exceeds the amount of the District contribution, the additional cost of the premium is the responsibility on the Unit Member and must be paid by automatic payroll deduction monthly from their payroll check to pay for the additional of the medical benefit premium. If the Unit Member pay is insufficient to cover this additional cost, the Unit Member shall submit payment within fifteen (15) days of receiving notice of such cost. The payment shall be submitted to the Benefits office in Human Resources for processing.
- 12.3.2.4 Unit Members meeting the forty percent (40%) NOCCCD assignment eligibility for the Spring Semester, will maintain eligibility through July 31.
- 12.3.2.5 Unit Members who do not meet the forty percent (40%) NOCCCD semester assignment eligibility and work less than forty percent (40%) in any semester will be eligible to receive the District contribution up to \$157.00 monthly. The District contribution has no cash value and can only be used to enroll in benefits as offered by NOCCCD.
- 12.3.2.6 Unit Members or their dependents whose premiums for health insurance are paid by an employer other than a community college district are not eligible to participate in the NOCCCD program.
- 12.3.2.7 Unit Members who have enrolled in the District medical plan who become ineligible will not receive District contributions towards medical benefits. Unit Members who become ineligible will receive appropriate Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) notices. Unit Members will then be eligible to enroll in COBRA at their own expense according to the laws and regulations governing COBRA.

#### 12.3.3 MULTI-DISTRICT PART-TIME FACULTY PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

- 12.3.3.1 In accordance with chaptered, Education Code Sections 87861(b), 87863(b), and 87865 to be eligible for health insurance premium reimbursement under this program, Unit Members must meet all of the following criteria:
- 12.3.3.2 Assignments at two or more community college districts that equal or exceed forty percent (40%) of the cumulative equivalent of a minimum full-time teaching assignment each semester;
- 12.3.3.3 Unit Members or their dependents whose premiums for health insurance are paid by an employer other than a community college district are not eligible to participate in the NOCCCD program;
- 12.3.3.4 Load of forty percent (40%) at NOCCCD and whose assignment at another community college district is forty percent (40%) or more that offers part-time faculty benefits are not eligible to participate in the NOCCCD program;
- 12.3.3.5 Unit Members must have individually purchased a healthcare plan.
- 12.3.3.6 CERTIFICATION: qualifying Unit Members must submit a completed and signed application reimbursement form and provide documentation as requested by the District demonstrating they meet the eligibility requirements by no later than the last day of the semester for which reimbursement is to be claimed.

- 12.3.3.7 REIMBURSEMENT: Upon certification of the required documentation and payment by Unit Members, the District shall issue a reimbursement equal to its share of this premium payment for up to six (6) months. The District's share shall be determined by dividing the total health insurance premium paid by the unit member by the total number of community college districts in which the unit member currently holds an active assignment. The District's share shall not exceed that which it would have paid if the unit member had been a full-time faculty member purchasing the District's most commonly subscribed family medical plan.
- 12.3.3.8 In the event that a Unit Member selects a plan which exceeds the amount of the District contribution, the additional cost of the premium is the responsibility on the Unit Member and must be paid by automatic payroll deduction monthly from their payroll check to pay for the additional of the medical benefit premium. If the Unit Member pay is insufficient to cover this additional cost, Unit Members shall submit payment within fifteen (15) days of receiving notice of such cost. The payment shall be submitted to the Benefits office in Human Resources for processing.
- 12.4 VESTING: Consistent with California Government Code 22895, Unit Members employed prior to July 1, 2023, or hired by the District to begin work on or after July 1, 2023, shall be entitled to District-paid post-retirement medical benefits at the same contribution rate of \$157.00 per month if the Unit Member has been employed by the District and retires with a minimum of fifty (50) years of District credited service or Unit Members who qualify for disability retirement under the State Teachers Retirement System or the Public Employees Retirement System. California Government Codes 22897 and 22893 are not applicable.
- 12.5 If at any time CalPERS medical does not permit Unit Members to participate in the program or if the District is unable to secure a provider or carrier to insure the Unit Members, the District's obligation to the Unit Members will be extinguished and the terms of this agreement will be null and void.
- 12.6 The language requiring District contribution for health care as delineated above is contingent upon state funding and if the state does not reimburse the District for 100% of the healthcare costs for Unit Members, this language will be extinguished and the terms of this Agreement will be null and void. The District may continue District contributions for medical benefits through the end of semester in which State funding is eliminated.
- 12.7 The parties agree that the District's primary responsibility regarding scheduling of faculty and assignments is to best meet the needs of students and programs, and that this health insurance premium reimbursement program does not obligate the District to schedule a minimum load for any Unit Member from one term to another.
- 12.8 To receive reimbursement for premiums paid during a semester, a Unit Member must meet the eligibility requirements as provided in this Article and must apply for reimbursement by submitting a (one per semester) properly completed and signed Adjunct Faculty Health Insurance Premium Reimbursement form, to be made available electronically as a fillable form on the district website, accompanied by proof of insurance and proof of payment, to the District Office of Human Resources not later than the last day of the semester for which reimbursement is to be claimed. A separate application for reimbursement, as provided herein, must be submitted for each semester for which reimbursement is to be claimed.
  - 12.8.1 The District insurance premium reimbursement will be made directly to the Unit Member in a single payment, by separate reimbursement check payable to the Unit Member, for the actual amount of premium payments made by the Unit Member during the semester, up to the limits specified in section 12.1, after validation of the Unit Member's eligibility. Reimbursement shall be made as soon as in practicable after the Unit Member has applied for reimbursement in accordance with the provisions of section 12.5.
  - 12.8.2 Federal and State withholding taxes will not be deducted from the reimbursement check. The Unit Member shall be responsible for any federal or state tax liability arising out of, or related to the receipt

- of reimbursement from the District for medical insurance premiums and shall hold harmless the District with respect thereto.
- 12.8.3 The District shall not be held responsible for conditions imposed by regulatory agencies or insurance carriers that are beyond the control of the District.
- 12.8.4 Failure of a Unit Member to apply for reimbursement in accordance with the provisions of section 12.5 or to otherwise provide, within twenty-one (21) calendar days of request, such information as may be requested by the District to validate the Unit Member's application for reimbursement, shall render the Unit Member ineligible for reimbursement for that semester.
- 12.9 The District shall have the right to request from the Unit Member and the insurance carrier such information as is reasonably necessary to validate the Unit Member's eligibility, proof of insurance and proof of payment including, but not limited to, invoices or billing notices, canceled checks, etc.
- 12.10 Service by a Unit Member during any summer session or other intersession, or service in substitute or "as needed" assignment, shall not count toward the eligibility requirements to qualify for the District health insurance premium contribution.
- 12.11 Fraudulent application for reimbursement of premiums or falsification or information supplied in conjunction with such application shall render a Unit Member permanently ineligible for further reimbursement of premiums under the provision of this Article.
- 12.12 Employee Assistance Program
  Effective Fall 2021, Unit Members who are in paid status will be eligible for the District's sponsored Employee Assistance Program.
- 12.13 This article is not subject to the Grievance Procedure.

#### **OFFICE HOURS**

- 13.1 The pay rates per instructional unit for Unit Members who teach credit classes, and the pay rates per hour for Unit Members who teach noncredit classes, include compensation for ten (10) minutes of office hour time for consultation with students and performance of clerical requirements for each fifty (50) minutes of assignment.
- 13.2 Office hour time as provided in this Article is negotiated pursuant to Education Code Section 87884 and shall not be applicable toward the sixty-seven (67) percent requirement as specified in Education Code Section 87482.5. Office hour time shall not be counted towards the hours per week of teaching classes for purposes of acquiring eligibility for tenure or for purposes of fulfilling any probationary hour requirements.
- 13.3 This section applies to semester and intersession assignments. This Article shall not require the creation of additional office spaces. Unit Members are required to request office space through their respective Division prior to submitting their request for office hours. The Division shall provide the Unit Member with access to available spaces and times.
- The District and Adjunct Faculty United acknowledge that office hours for part-time faculty contribute to student success. The District shall set aside the amount not to exceed four hundred twenty thousand dollars (\$420,000.00) annually for the purpose of funding adjunct faculty office hours. Two hundred ten thousand dollars (\$210,000) shall be allocated for each fall and spring semester. Unused funds shall not carry over to future semesters.
- 13.5 Approved office hours shall be paid at the rate of forty-five dollars (\$45.00) per hour.
  - 13.5.1 Missed hours may not be rescheduled and shall not be compensated. The Unit Member may not use accrued sick leave or other paid leaves for office hours.
- 13.6 Office Hour Structure:

SEMESTER LHE	SEMESTER HOURS	MAXIMUM NUMBER OF
CREDIT INSTRUCTOR	NON-CREDIT	OFFICE HOURS
	INSTRUCTOR	(per week - all assignments combined)
Less than 5 LHE	Less than 8.25 hours	30 minutes
5 LHE or more	8.25 hour or more	60 minutes

- 13.7 Application Unit Members wishing to conduct paid office hours outside of the dedicated ten (10) minutes of office hour time with students referenced in section 13.1 shall submit a request to their Immediate Management Supervisor (IMS) on the District approved form no later than one calendar week after receiving an assignment and as described below:
  - 13.7.1 The IMS shall notify the Unit Member of the application outcome no later than ten (10) business days prior to the first date of instruction or five (5) days after receiving the Unit Member's office hour request whichever is later.
  - 13.7.2 All applications shall be reviewed consistent with the availability of funds.
  - 13.7.3 Approved office hours shall be added to staff assignment sheets and the syllabus.
- 13.8 Scheduling Office hours can be requested to be held synchronously either in person or remote, conducive to the needs of both student and Unit Member, with the default office hour modality matching the instructional method modality. In cases where the default office hour modality is not requested and the Unit Member requests an alternate modality, the requested modality shall be approved by the Unit Member's IMS.

- 13.8.1 The following online modalities are NOT allowable substitutes for synchronous office hours: email, discussion board, text message, chat board, or similar.
- 13.8.2 Approved paid office hours: office hours shall be requested and scheduled with the following considerations in mind:
  - 13.8.2.1 Shall be scheduled to provide reasonable student access with respect to classes in order to support and promote student retention, equity, and success.
  - 13.8.2.2 Shall be scheduled before or after regularly scheduled class(es) unless otherwise approved by the IMS.
  - 13.8.2.3 Shall be held as approved by the IMS.
  - 13.8.2.4 Unit Members shall make every effort to meet with a student who requests a meeting by appointment if the student is unable to meet during regularly scheduled office hours.
  - 13.8.2.5 Approved office hours shall be clearly published in the course syllabus no later than the Unit Member's first day of instruction and shall include the Unit Member's contact information, method of contact, and meeting location.
  - 13.8.2.6 Unit Member shall have completed and submitted a weekly District office hour report to be eligible for office hours in any subsequent semesters.

#### **LEAVES OF ABSENCE**

#### 14.1 Sick Leave

#### 14.1.1 Regular Sick Leave

14.1.1.1 Unit Members who perform assignments during a regular semester shall be credited with one and three-tenths (1.3) hours of regular sick leave for every eighteen (18) hours of service. For purposes of crediting and deducting regular sick leave for service as an adjunct faculty member, assignments performed during the winter intersession shall be considered part of the spring semester load.

#### 14.1.2 Intersession Sick Leave

- 14.1.2.1 In addition to the regular sick leave as provided above, Unit Members shall receive sick leave credit for Intersession assignments with one and three-tenths (1.3) hours of regular sick leave for every eighteen (18) hours of such service, not to exceed the following cumulative totals per academic year:
  - 14.1.2.1.1 six (6) hours for credit teaching assignments;
  - 14.1.2.1.2 thirteen (13) hours for academic counseling assignments;
  - 14.1.2.1.3 fourteen (14) hours for academic librarian assignments;
  - 14.1.2.1.4 ten (10) hours for noncredit teaching assignments.
- 14.1.3 Unused sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year and may be used during a term in which a Unit Member maintains an active assignment. Absences during a regular semester or intersession shall be deducted from accumulated regular sick leave in one (1) hour increments on the basis of actual hours of absence or fraction thereof. Payment for sick leave benefits shall not extend beyond the end of the term in which the leave commences or the end of the Unit Member's assignment during the term, whichever occurs first.
- 14.1.4 Sick leave will not be credited for day-to-day substitute or "as needed" assignments, office hours, professional expert assignments, or any other assignment or service not part of the Unit Member's regular academic credit or noncredit teaching, counseling or librarian assignment and may not be used for absences related to any such assignments.
- 14.1.5 Unit Members shall provide notification of any absence from duty to the appropriate administrative office not later than the usual time the Unit Member would be required to report for duty.
- 14.1.6 Unit Members who are absent because of illness shall be required to certify on a form provided by the District that such absence was due to illness or injury. The form must be approved for payment by the Immediate Management Supervisor and payment for absence due to illness shall be made only upon certification by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee that such absence was for reason of illness or injury.
- 14.1.7 Unit Members who are absent because of illness for more than the number of consecutive working days constituting one week of the Unit Member's current assignment shall provide the District with a medical statement form a licensed physician establishing the validity of the absence. For example, if a Unit Member has an assignment one day per week, then one absence constitutes a week. If a Unit Member has an assignment two days per week, then two consecutive absences constitute a week, and so on. Such medical statement shall include either (1) a statement concerning the Unit Member's illness

or injury to justify the Unit Member's continued absence from work, or (2) a statement concerning the Unit Member's ability to return to the Unit Member's assigned duties following the illness or injury which resulted in the absence. For purposes of this section, "licensed physician" means a medical doctor or osteopath, but does not include chiropractors, acupuncturists or similar practitioners.

#### 14.2 Personal Necessity Leave

- 14.2.1 <u>Regular Semester</u>: During any regular semester, Unit Members may use up to twelve (12) hours of accumulated regular sick leave for personal necessity leave, not to exceed seven (7) consecutive calendar days during any one semester.
- 14.2.2 <u>Intersession</u>: During any intersession, Unit Members may use up to three (3) hours of accumulated intersession sick leave for personal necessity leave.
- 14.2.3 Absences for personal necessity leave shall be deducted from accumulated regular sick leave in one (1) hour increments on the basis of actual hours of absence or fraction thereof.
- 14.2.4 The use of personal necessity leave shall be limited to: a) death or serious illness of a member of the Unit Member's immediate family; b) an accident involving the Unit Member's person or property or the person or property of the Unit Member's immediate family; c) other matters of compelling personal importance. Except for circumstances arising under "a" or "b" above, if it is reasonable to expect that the Unit Member would know about an absence for personal necessity in advance, the Unit Member shall obtain prior approval by providing the District with written notice at least five (5) working days prior to the first day of the requested leave. Should circumstances under "a" or "b" arise, the Unit Member shall make every effort to provide notification to the appropriate administrative office not later than the usual time the Unit Member would be required to report for duty.
- 14.2.5 Personal necessity leave may not be used for the pursuit of business, financial or economic interests, including the pursuit of employment outside the District, for matters which can be taken care of outside of work hours, or for vacation or other recreational pursuits.
- 14.2.6 Unit Members who are absent because of personal necessity shall be required to certify on a form provided by the District that such absence was used only for the purpose set forth in 14.2.4 above. The form must be approved for payment by the Immediate Management Supervisor and payment for absence due to illness shall be made only upon certification by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee that such absence was for reason of personal necessity. The District shall have the right to require substantiation of any claim for personal necessity leave.
- 14.2.7 Payment for personal necessity leave shall not extend beyond the end of the semester or term in which the leave commences or the end of the Unit member's assignment during the term, whichever occurs first.

#### 14.3 Jury Duty

- 14.3.1 Jury Duty leave shall be granted by the District without loss in pay, provided that payment for jury duty leave shall not extend beyond the end of the semester or term in which the leave commences or the end of the Unit Member's assignment during the term, whichever occurs first.
- 14.3.2 Unit Members shall reimburse the District for payment received for jury duty in a manner prescribed by the District, and the District will issue the employee's normal paycheck.
- 14.3.3 Unit Members shall provide the District with official verification of the number of days of jury duty.

#### 14.4. Legislative Leave

Unit Members who are elected to the State Legislature or the United States Congress shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence.

#### 14.5 Professional Activity Leave

- 14.5.1 Unit Members may request attendance at professional conferences and workshops or participation in other professional activities relevant to the Unit Member's assignment as an adjunct faculty member. Such request shall be submitted to the Immediate Management Supervisor for approval in accordance with established District procedures. If approved by the Chancellor or designee, attendance shall be allowed with no loss in pay.
- 14.5.2 Staff development opportunities are available to Unit Members in accordance with procedures established by the colleges and the North Orange Continuing Education.

#### 14.6 Organizational Leave

- 14.6.1 An organizational leave shall be granted to a Unit Member, upon request, to serve as an elected officer of, or appointee to, the local public employee organization or a statewide or national public employee organization with which the Union is affiliated.
- 14.6.2 In the event a Unit Member is granted a leave to serve as an elected officer of the local public employee organization (union) or a statewide or national public employee organization (union) with which the Union is affiliated, the District will issue the employee's normal paycheck, provided the District is reimbursed by the organization within ten days of receipt of certification of payment of compensation as provided in Education Code Section 87768.5. Compensation of the Unit Member by the District shall not extend beyond the end of the semester or term in which the leave commences or the end of the Unit Member's assignment during the term, whichever occurs first.
- 14.6.3 In the event a Unit Member is granted a leave to serve as an appointee to the local public employee organization (union) or a statewide or national public employee organization (union) with which the Union is affiliated, the leave shall be unpaid.

#### 14.7 Bereavement Leave

- 14.7.1. Unit Members may to take up to five (5) days of bereavement leave upon the death of a family member. The days of bereavement leave need not be consecutive and shall be completed within three months of the date of death of the family member.
  - 14.7.1.1 Bereavement leave is available for the loss of a family member. A family member is defined as a spouse or a child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, domestic partner, or parent-in-law.
  - 14.7.1.2 Unit Members will be compensated for two (2) days of bereavement leave within seven (7) consecutive calendar days.
  - 14.7.1.3 Unit Members may use available personal necessity leave in accordance with 14.2.
  - 14.7.1.4 Unit Members who are absent for bereavement leave shall certify the leave on the monthly time and attendance reporting in the District's attendance system.
- 14.8 Unit Members may be required to provide the District with verification of any leave under this Article.

#### **DISTANCE EDUCATION**

- 15.1 Definition: For the purpose of this Article:
  - 15.1.1 Distance Education means education that uses one or more technologies listed below to deliver instruction to students who are physically separated from the instructor and to support regular and substantive interactions between students and the instructor, either synchronously or asynchronously.
    - i. The internet.
    - ii. One-way and two-way transmissions through open broadcast, closed circuit, cable, microwave, broadband lines, fiber optics, satellite, or wireless communications devices.
    - iii. Audioconferencing.
    - iv. Other media used in a course in conjunction with any of the technologies listed in the paragraph above.
  - 15.1.2 A "hybrid course" is any distance education course that has a combination of online and scheduled oncampus/in-person meetings.
  - 15.1.3 An "online course" is any distance education course that has no scheduled on-campus/in-person meetings. An online course can be fully synchronous, fully asynchronous or a combination thereof.
- All distance education courses must go through the curriculum approval process with the completion of a DE Addendum and have it approved by the Curriculum Committee. Distance education courses must adhere to all relevant Title 5 Sections such as § 55206 Separate Course Approval, § 55202 Course Quality Standards, and § 55204 Instructor Contact.
- 15.3 Responsibilities of Faculty Assigned to Distance education Classes:
  - 15.3.1 "Direct Instruction" is defined as instructional approaches that are structured, sequenced, designed, and presented specifically to engage students, and includes, but is not limited to, instructor-created content, curated material, reading assignments, and other forms of instructional material.
  - 15.3.2 A "Learning Management System," or LMS, is the digital platform used for launching online content and instruction for students, in both synchronous and asynchronous modalities, and also acts as a means of student authentication and interaction.
    - 15.3.2.1 Instructors must use the District-supported Learning Management System for instruction for the purpose of student authentication and interaction; this provision does not exclude the use of third-party plugins and external tools launched via the LMS.
  - 15.3.3 Regular and Substantive Interaction: Instructors teaching Distance education courses must maintain regular and substantive interaction between instructors and students and students to students. Regular and substantive interaction means engaging students in teaching, learning, assessment consistent with the content under discussion in addition to at least two of the following: 1) Providing direct instruction; 2) Assessing or providing feedback on a student's coursework; 3) Providing information or responding to questions about the content of a course or competency; 4) Facilitating a group discussion regarding the content of a course or competency; and 5) Other instructional activities approved by the College's or a program's accrediting agency.
- 15.4 Assignment, Workload, and Use of Developed Materials:

- 15.4.1 Unit Members assigned to teach distance education courses shall receive the same load credit and compensation as if the course were taught in the traditional method. No form of extra remuneration shall be awarded in conjunction with the teaching of any distance education course.
- 15.4.2 At the discretion of the District and subject to staff development funding availability, Unit Members may be eligible for compensation, on a one-time basis, for completion of approved course work and training in the pedagogy and technology of online teaching, which may include the development of an online course as an integral component of such course work or training. Except as provided in this section, no form of remuneration shall be awarded to a Unit Member in conjunction with the development of any distance education course.
- 15.4.3 Unit Members assigned distance education courses shall adhere to District and/or campus standards, format and procedures applicable to distance education courses (e.g., use of prescribed course management software).
- 15.4.4 In the absence of a separate and express written contract to the contrary between a Unit Member and the District, a Unit Member shall have the property rights to distance education course materials developed by the Unit Member, provided such materials are not within the public domain. The District shall have no obligation to provide any form of compensation to a Unit Member for distance education course materials developed or used by the Unit Member in conjunction with any distance education course assignment within the District.
- 15.5 Prior to teaching a Distance education Course, Unit Members are required to obtain online teaching certification,
  - 15.5.1 No stipend or any other forms of remuneration shall be awarded in conjunction with the development of any distance education course.
- 15.6 Dropping Students: Unit Members are responsible for dropping students if they do not regularly participate in activities defined in the syllabus in 20% or more of any part of the scheduled class term prior to the established drop date for the class.
- 15.7 Class Size for Distance education Classes: The class size limit for a distance education class shall be the same as for the traditional, i.e. on-campus/in-person class.
- 15.8 Evaluation of Unit Member Teaching a Distance education Course(s)
  - 15.8.1 The evaluation of Unit Members teaching distance education courses aims to ensure high-quality instruction and student engagement in distance education classes under the provisions of Article 9.
  - 15.8.2 Unit Members teaching a distance education course shall be evaluated in at least one distance education course during their normal evaluation cycle.
  - 15.8.3 As part of the ongoing evaluation process, online or hybrid courses must show evidence of faculty-initiated and student-to-student regular and substantive contact and interaction consistently and ongoing throughout the length of the course.
  - 15.8.4 Frequency of evaluation shall adhere to Article 9.
  - 15.8.5 Distance education Course evaluations shall include the following:
    - 15.8.5.1 An Administrative Evaluation of the Unit Member's performance which shall include observation of online teaching, course unit, and sample material, such as quizzes, assignments, student projects, handouts, etc. Access to the LMS for the evaluator will be a maximum of ten (10) working days. Access level to the LMS for the evaluator shall be at least the same level as the Unit Member.

- 15.8.5.2 Engagement with students through interactive activities, discussion forums, and timely feedback on assignments, including regular and substantive interaction between instructors and students, and students to students.
- 15.8.5.3 Design and organization of course materials, including clear learning objectives, instructional resources, and assessments aligned to course outcomes.
- 15.8.5.4 Maximize the use of technology tools and resources to improve the quality of the online instruction.
- 15.8.5.5 Compliance with college polices and guidelines for online course delivery accessibility standards.

#### 15.9 Student Surveys of Online Courses

15.9.1 Distance education student evaluations shall be conducted online using the established instrument.

#### **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

#### 16.1 Purpose

It is the intent of the District and the Union to promote and improve their relationship by encouraging the prompt resolution of problems arising during the course of their relationship. Accordingly, it is the purpose of this grievance procedure to provide an orderly and equitable means by which grievances can be resolved in accord with this Agreement in an expeditious, amicable and decisive manner.

#### 16.2 Definitions

- 16.2.1 A "grievance" is defined as a claim by a Unit Member or the Union alleging that the District has violated, misapplied or misinterpreted a specific provision of this Agreement.
  - 16.2.1.1 The Union may file a consolidated grievance on behalf of two (2) or more Unit Members who are in substantially similar positions and are alleged to have been affected by a violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of the same specific provisions of the Agreement. The names of affected Unit Members shall be identified in the grievance. The final decision shall be binding upon all parties to the consolidated grievance.
  - 16.2.1.2 The Union may file a grievance on its own behalf where the grievance alleges a violation of the rights of the Union.
- 16.2.2 A "grievant" is a Unit Member or group of Unit Members covered by the terms of this Agreement, or the Union.
- 16.2.3 A "day" is a weekday on which the central administrative office of the District is regularly open for business.
- 16.2.4 An "immediate management supervisor" is the first level academic administrator who has immediate jurisdiction over the grievant.
- 16.2.5 A "representative" is any person designated by the Union to represent a grievant or any person designated by the District to represent the District pursuant to this Article.

#### 16.3 <u>Matters Excluded</u>

- 16.3.1 In addition to matters that may be excluded as provided in other articles of this Agreement, it is expressly understood that the following items are specifically excluded from the grievance procedure:
  - 16.3.1.1 any dispute concerning the provisions of Article 2 of this Agreement;
  - 16.3.1.2 matters relating to the selection and hiring of Unit Members;
  - 16.3.1.3 matters relating to the retention of Unit Members, except as may be specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement;
  - 16.3.1.4 the substantive findings of the District with respect to the evaluation of a Unit Member;
  - 16.3.1.5 matters for which a specific method of review is provided by law, by the rules and regulations of the Board of Trustees, or by the administrative regulations and procedures of the District and not expressly provided for in this Agreement.

16.3.2 The District shall not be required to process any grievance claim arising from any act, omission or practice which occurred more than twenty-five (25) days prior to the effective date of this Agreement or any subsequent amendment to the Agreement.

#### 16.4 Rights and Responsibilities

- 16.4.1 A grievant shall be entitled to Union representation at all grievance meetings under this Article. A grievant shall also be entitled to represent himself, but may not be represented by any other person than a Union representative. The District may be represented by any person or agent designated by the District to act on its behalf.
- 16.4.2 A Unit Member may have a grievance adjusted without the intervention of the Union as long as the adjustment is reached prior to arbitration and the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. The District shall not agree to a resolution of the grievance until the Union has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed resolution and has been given the opportunity to file a response. The Union shall have fifteen (15) days from the receipt of the proposed resolution to submit a written response.
- 16.4.3 Any investigation or processing of a grievance by a grievant or the Union shall be conducted so as to result in minimal interference with the conduct of District business or the scheduled duties of employees. Wherever possible, grievance meetings shall occur outside of the grievant's scheduled work hours.
- 16.4.4 The filing or pendency of a grievance shall not delay or interfere with the right of the District to proceed in carrying out its management responsibilities during the processing thereof. Unit Members shall carry out all lawful, written management directives pending the final resolution of a grievance.
- 16.4.5 Documents dealing exclusively with the filing and processing of a grievance shall be maintained separately from the grievant's personnel file.

#### 16.5 Waivers and Time Limits

- 16.5.1 Time is of the essence in all processing of grievances and the time limits prescribed herein shall be strictly construed.
- 16.5.2 Failure of a grievant to act on any grievance within the prescribed time limits shall render the grievance null and void. Failure of a grievant to appeal to the next step within the prescribed time limits shall conclude the grievance and constitute a settlement on the basis of the decision last made by the District.
- 16.5.3 Failure of the District to respond to a grievance within the prescribed time limits shall permit the grievant to appeal to the next step.
- 16.5.4 Any time limits established in this procedure may be modified by mutual written agreement between the District and the Union.

#### 16.6 Procedure

#### 16.6.1 Level of Initiation

- 16.6.1.1 <u>Level One</u> If a grievance arises from any action or inaction at the level of the Immediate Management Supervisor, the grievance shall initiate with the Immediate Management Supervisor as respondent.
- 16.6.1.2 <u>Level Two</u> If a grievance arises from any action or inaction at the campus level, the grievance shall initiate with the President/Provost as respondent.

16.6.1.3 <u>Level Three</u> – If a grievance arises from any action or inaction at the District level, the grievance shall initiate with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources as respondent.

#### 16.6.2 Initial Filing of Grievance

- 16.6.2.1 Within twenty-five (25) days after the grievant knew, or by reasonable diligence should have known, of the event or condition upon which the grievance is based, the grievant shall file a written grievance with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources. The grievance shall be signed and dated by the grievant. A grievance shall not be valid for consideration unless it is submitted in writing on the prescribed grievance form, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Appendix C-1.
- 16.6.2.2 The grievance must contain the following information:

16.6.2.2.1	citation of the specific article(s) and section(s) of the Agreement alleged to
	have been violated, misapplied, or misinterpreted;

- a clear and concise description of the nature and grounds of the grievance and the specific manner in which the cited article(s) and section(s) of the Agreement are alleged to have been violated, misapplied, or misinterpreted;
- 16.6.2.2.3 the specific action(s) requested of the District which will remedy the grievance;
- 16.6.2.2.4 the grievant's mailing address;
- 16.6.2.2.5 the grievant's contact telephone number;
- 16.6.2.2.6 the name of the grievant's Union representative, if any.
- 16.6.2.3 Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the completed grievance form, if requested by the grievant on the grievance form, the respondent or such representatives as the respondent may designate, will contact the grievant, or such representative(s) as the grievant may designate, to schedule a meeting in an effort to resolve the grievance.
- 16.6.2.4 Within fifteen (15) days of the meeting as specified in section 16.6.2.3, or within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the completed grievance form, if no meeting is requested by the grievant, the respondent or designee shall provide the grievant and the Union with a written decision regarding the grievance, including an explanation of the reasons therefore.
- 16.6.2.5 Within ten (10) days after receiving the written decision of the respondent or designee, if not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, the grievant may appeal the grievance to the next level.

#### 16.6.3 Appeal

- 16.6.3.1 Except in the case of a request for arbitration, an appeal to the next level must be initiated by submitting to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, within ten (10) days after receiving the written decision at the previous level, a completed grievance appeal form. The grievance appeal from shall include as attachments complete copies of all processed grievance forms and other documents of an evidentiary nature. The grievance appeal shall be signed and dated by the grievant. A grievance appeal shall not be valid for consideration unless it is submitted in writing on the prescribed grievance appeal form, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Appendix C-2.
- 16.6.3.2 Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the competed grievance appeal form, the respondent or designee shall provide the grievant and the Union with a written decision regarding the grievance, including an explanation of the reasons therefore.

16.6.3.3 Where a grievance has been processed at Level Three and the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, the grievant may submit a written request in writing that the Union submit the grievance to arbitration. The decision to proceed to arbitration shall be at the discretion of the Union. The Union shall have the right to independently proceed to arbitration in the absence of a request by the grievant.

#### 16.6.4 Arbitration

- 16.6.4.1 Where a grievance has been processed at Level Three, within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the written decision of the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee, the Union shall provide written notice to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources of its intent to proceed to arbitration. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Union's notification of intent to proceed to arbitration, the District and the Union shall attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator.
- 16.6.4.2 If the District and the Union cannot mutually agree upon the selection of an arbitrator, the District and the Union shall each submit five (5) names of persons experienced in hearing grievances in public schools. Each party shall alternately strike a name until there is one name remaining. The remaining name shall be the arbitrator. The party that strikes first shall be determined by coin toss.
  - 16.6.4.2.1 Within five (5) days of selection of the arbitrator, the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources or designee shall contact the arbitrator.
  - 16.6.4.2.2 Should that arbitrator not be available to hold a hearing within sixty (60) working days of the contact, at the request of the either the District or the Union, the party who submitted the name of that arbitrator shall submit an additional name and the striking process will be repeated in accordance with the provisions of section 16.6.4.2, using the additional name and the remaining names submitted by the parties. The order of striking shall remain the same as previously determined.
- 16.6.4.3 Advocates for the parties in arbitration shall exchange all documentary material to be entered as evidence at least five (5) days before the first day of hearing. The names of witnesses shall be exchanged at least five (5) days before the first day of hearing. Prior to arbitration, the Union and the District shall have equal access to documents and records that will assist in adjusting the grievance, as mutually determined by the parties. These provisions may be modified or waived by mutual agreement of the District and the Union.
- 16.6.4.4 The hearing shall be private with attendance limited to the parties to the grievance and their representatives, if any, and witnesses while testifying.
- 16.6.4.5 All costs for the services of the arbitrator, including but not limited to, per diem expenses, travel and subsistence expenses, and the cost of any off-site hearing room will be borne equally by the District and the Union. The cost of the transcript shall be borne by the party requesting the transcript, except that the District and the Union shall share the cost of the transcript if requested by the arbitrator. All other costs will be borne by the party incurring them.
- 16.6.4.6 If the parties cannot agree upon a statement of the issue(s) to be arbitrated, the arbitrator shall determine the issues by referring to the grievance documents. If any question arises as to the arbitrability of the grievance, such question shall be first decided separately by the arbitrator before consideration of the merits of the grievance. If either the District or the Union so requests, a separate arbitrator shall be selected to hear the merits of any issue raised regarding the arbitrability of a grievance. No hearing on the merits of the grievance will be conducted until the issue of arbitrability has been decided.

16.6.4.7 Both parties shall be afforded the opportunity to make written and oral arguments to the arbitrator. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon the parties, shall be in writing, and shall set forth findings of fact, reasoning, conclusions, and remedy.

#### 16.6.4.8 Limits on the Authority of the Arbitrator

- The arbitrator's decision shall be based solely and exclusively on the issues, evidence and arguments presented by the parties to the grievance and the record in the case. The jurisdiction of the arbitrator and the arbitrator's authority shall be confined exclusively to the interpretation of the express provisions of this Agreement which are at issue. The arbitrator shall not consider any matter outside the scope of the grievance, as the term "grievance" is defined in this Article, and shall confine the decision to the precise issue(s) submitted, and shall have no authority to make a recommendation on any other issue(s).
- The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, delete or modify any of the terms of this Agreement, but shall determine only whether or not there has been a violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of this Agreement in the respect alleged in the grievance, and if the arbitrator determines there has been such a violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation, what the remedy shall be.
- The arbitrator shall not have the authority to impose limitations or obligations not expressly provided for in this Agreement and shall have no power to grant a remedy exceeding that sought by the grievant. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the District to do any act prohibited by law or in violation of this Agreement.
- 16.6.4.8.4 No decision rendered by the arbitrator shall be retroactive beyond the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.
- 16.6.4.9 The arbitrator's decision shall be submitted to the District and the Union within thirty (30) calendar days of submission of the matter.

#### 16.6.5 Expedited Arbitration

By mutual agreement of the District and the Union, arbitration may be held under the Expedited Rules of the American Arbitration Association.

#### 16.6.6 Consolidation of Grievances in Arbitration

By mutual agreement of the District and the Union, grievances of a similar or like nature may be joined in a single arbitration procedure. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon all parties to the consolidated arbitration.

16.6.7 It is expressly understood that the only matters which are subject to arbitration under this Article are grievances which have been processed in accordance with this Article. Any matter excluded from the grievance procedure as provided in section 16.3 of this Article, or as provided in any other article of the Agreement, is not subject to arbitration.

#### 16.7 Filing

16.7.1 Filing of a grievance or a grievance appeal by a grievant or by the Union, or filing of notice by the Union of its intent to proceed to arbitration, shall be by personal delivery, email, or by certified mail to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources.

- 16.7.2 Filing of a grievance decision or a grievance appeal decision by the District to a grievant or to the Union shall be by personal delivery, email, or by certified mail.
- 16.7.3 Filing shall not be permitted by regular mail, interoffice mail or campus mail unless otherwise agreed by the parties.
- 16.7.4 The day following the day a filing is received shall be counted as "day one" in determining time limits; the day a filing is received shall not be counted as a day in determining time limits.

#### **ACADEMIC FREEDOM**

- 17.1 The District and the Union agree that academic freedom is an essential component in the fulfillment of the educational mission of the District and the Unit Members, by virtue of their status as adjunct faculty, have an obligation to exercise critical self-discipline and judgment in using, extending and transmitting knowledge.
- 17.2 In the exercise of their duties and responsibilities as adjunct faculty, Unit Members shall have the academic freedom to seek the truth and promote students' freedom to pursue learning. Unit members have the right and responsibility to study, investigate and present controversial issues relevant to their assigned curriculum, and they shall have the freedom to consider all issues relevant to their assigned curriculum which will contribute to the educational development of their students.
- 17.3 There shall be no curtailment of presentation of factual material relating to all points of view regarding controversial issues relevant to a Unit Member's assigned curriculum, unless such presentation is forbidden by law.
- 17.4 The parties recognize that academic freedom must be balanced with the obligation of the District to protect the right of students to learn in an environment free of sexual harassment and hostility, and that the exercise of academic freedom does not extend to any form of unlawful discrimination, including the use in the classroom of profane, vulgar, or obscene speech which is not germane to the course content, in contravention of the District's sexual harassment policy.

#### **NONDISCRIMINATION**

18.1 No unit member shall be discriminated against on the basis of any protected category as listed in NOCCCD Board Policy and Administrative Procedure 3410 – Unlawful Discrimination.

BP 3410 and AP 3410 are located on the District website. The link is provided below. Scroll down to the Board Policy and Administrative Procedure for the full text.

http://www.nocccd.edu/policies-and-procedures

The District and the Union agree that these issues are best adjudicated by the appropriate state and federal agencies, and therefore, it is the expressed intent of the parties that any dispute or claim arising under this Article shall be specifically excluded from the grievance procedure as provided in this Agreement.

#### **EMPLOYMENT DURING WINTER INTERSESSION**

- 19.1 Pursuant to the provisions of AB2146 (Education Code section 87474, as amended), the District and the Union agree that service in connection with employment by a Unit Member during a winter intersession term maintained by the District shall be excluded from the computation of the service required as a prerequisite to attainment of, or eligibility for, classification as a regular employee of the District.
- 19.2 "Winter intersession term" means any of the following:
  - 19.2.1 that period between the last day of the fall semester and the first day of the following spring semester.

#### STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (STRS)

#### FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT SERVICE CREDIT STANDARD

#### 20.1 Adjunct Credit Instructional Faculty

For the purpose of crediting State Teachers Retirement System service pursuant to the requirements of sections 22138.5(a) and 22138.5(c)(5) of the California Education Code, the full-time equivalent standard for part-time credit instructional faculty is five hundred twenty-five (525) hours per academic year.

#### 20.2 Adjunct Noncredit Instructional Faculty

For the purpose of crediting State Teachers Retirement System service pursuant to the requirements of sections 22138.5(a) and 22138.5(c)(5) of the California Education Code, the full-time equivalent standard for part-time noncredit instructional faculty is eight hundred seventy-five (875) hours per academic year.

#### 20.3 Adjunct Counselors and Librarians

For the purpose of crediting State Teachers Retirement System service pursuant to the requirements of sections 22138.5(a) and 22138.5(c)(5) of the California Education Code, the full-time equivalent standard for part-time counselors and librarians is one thousand fifty (1,050) hours per academic year.

#### 20.4 CalSTRS

The information in this article is provided for information purposes only. For questions or further information about CalSTRS and your membership type (Classic or PEPRA-Public Employees' Pension Reform Act) contact CalSTRS directly at:

#### http://www.calstrs.com/

Phone: 800-228-5453 or 916-414-1099 Fax: 916-414-5040

Mail: P. O. Box 15275 Sacramento, CA 95851-0275

#### **EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT**

In Witness Whereof, the parties execute this Agreement on the	11th day of <u>September</u> 2025.
FOR THE DISTRICT	FOR ADFAC FACULTY UNITED
Chief Negotiator, Irma Ramos	President, AFT Local 6106, Marlo Smith

#### APPENDIX A

ADJUNCT FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULES

#### NORTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

### ADJUNCT FACULTY (INSTRUCTOR/COUNSELOR/LIBRARIAN) SALARY SCHEDULE

#### SCHEDULE A - Effective August 25, 2025

#### **CREDIT INSTRUCTOR ASSIGNMENTS**

	COLUMN I Minimum Qualifications			COLUMN II Minimum Qualifications plus 36 Semester Units			COLUMN III Earned Doctorate			
CREDIT LECTURE	STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5	0.00 1,572.67 1,635.60 1,701.01 1,769.04 1,839.81	89.867     STEP 1     1,647.56     94.14       93.463     STEP 2     1,713.50     97.91       97.201     STEP 3     1,782.04     101.83       101.088     STEP 4     1,853.31     105.90		0.000 94.146 97.914 101.831 105.903 110.139	STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5	0.00 1,725.85 1,794.87 1,866.65 1,941.32 2,018.96	0.000 98.620 102.564 106.666 110.933 115.369		
CREDIT LABORATORY	STEP 0         0.00         0.000           STEP 1         1,258.16         71.895           STEP 2         1,308.48         74.770           STEP 3         1,360.84         77.762           STEP 4         1,415.26         80.872           STEP 5         1,471.87         84.107		STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5	0.00 1,318.05 1,370.79 1,425.62 1,482.64 1,541.95	0.000 75.317 78.331 81.464 84.722 88.111	STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5	0.00 1,380.60 1,435.83 1,493.28 1,552.99 1,615.10	0.000 78.891 82.047 85.330 88.742 92.291		

#### SCHEDULE B - Effective August 25, 2025

### COUNSELOR AND LIBRARIAN ASSIGNMENTS (Rate per Hour)

	COLUMN I Minimum Qualifications	COLUMN II  Minimum Qualifications plus 36 Semester Units	COLUMN III Earned Doctorate
COUNSELOR / LIRARIAN	STEP 0       0.00         STEP 1       71.89         STEP 2       74.77         STEP 3       77.78         STEP 4       80.87         STEP 5       84.14	STEP 0       0.00         STEP 1       75.31         STEP 2       78.31         STEP 3       81.44         STEP 4       84.69         STEP 5       88.07	STEP 0       0.00         STEP 1       78.89         STEP 2       82.03         STEP 3       85.34         STEP 4       88.76         STEP 5       92.28

#### SCHEDULE C - Effective August 11, 2025

### NONCREDIT INSTRUCTOR (Rate per Hour)

COLUMN I Minimum Qualifications			COLUMN II d Master's Degree		COLUMN III Earned Doctorate		
STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4	0.00 70.93 73.77 76.72 79.79		STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4	0.00 74.29 77.26 80.34 83.55	STEP 0 STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4	0.00 77.82 80.93 84.16 87.52	

Board Approved: 07/22/2025

#### APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORMS

#### STUDENT EVALUATION FORM – INSTRUCTOR

INSTRUCTOR'S NAME	
COURSE/DAYS/TIME: DATE	
In order to assist in the promotion and maintenance of high teaching standards among the faculty, ple time to evaluate this course by marking the appropriate letter on the form for each item, as indicated may also make written comments on this form.	
This evaluation will be anonymous and will not be seen by the instructor until after final grades for the been posted. Please be thoughtful and candid in your responses.	course have
A = Strongly Agree B = Agree C = Disagree D = Strongly Disagree E = No Opinion / Not Applicable	
About the Instructor:	
The instructor demonstrated interest in the subject.	ABCDE
2. The instructor was prepared for each class/lab session.	ABCDE
3. The instructor encouraged students to ask questions and participate in class/lab activity.	ABCDE
4. The instructor used time effectively.	ABCDE
5. The instructor maintained classroom control appropriate to the type of learning activity.	ABCDE
6. The instructor demonstrated courtesy, respect and professionalism.	ABCDE
7. The instructor arrived regularly and on time.	ABCDE
About the Course or Lab:	
8. The course/lab objectives and methods(s) of evaluation and grading were clearly explained.	ABCDE
<ol><li>Text and/or other reading materials were related to the objectives and subject matter of the course/lab.</li></ol>	ABCDE
<ol> <li>Coursework, assignments and other learning activities were related to the objectives and subject matter of the course/lab.</li> </ol>	ABCDE
11. Presentation of material in lectures, discussions and other learning activities was clear, organized and effective.	ABCDE
12. Examinations and/or other evaluations were related to the objectives and subject matter of the course/lab.	A B C D E
13. Grading of examinations and/or assignments followed the instructor's announced grading policy.	ABCDE
Comments:	
(Continue on back,	if necessary)

#### **STUDENT EVALUATION FORM - COUNSELOR**

COUNS	SELC	R'S NAME	DA	TE
your ap	opoin cated Il not	nuing interest to serve our students, we request that tment with your counselor by marking the appropriate below. You may also make written comments on the seen by the instructor until the end of the semest	ate le this f	etter on the scantron form for each item, form. This evaluation will be anonymous
1.	Му	reasons for coming to this counselor today were (m	nark a	all that apply):
	B.	Planning my classes for registration Long-range educational counseling Career counseling		Personal Counseling Other (need not explain)
		A = Strongly Agree B = Agree C = Disagree D = Strongly Disagree E = No Opinion / Not A	pplic	cable
<u>About</u>	the (	Counselor:		
2.	The	counselor was on time.		ABCDE
3.	The	counselor was a good listener.		ABCDE
4.	The	counselor explained my educational options clearl	у.	ABCDE
5.	The	counselor was courteous and respectful.		ABCDE
6.	The	counselor was helpful and knowledgeable.		ABCDE
7.	The	counselor referred me to appropriate resource ser	vices	s. A B C D E
8.	The	counselor assisted me in meeting my educational	goal	ls. A B C D E
9.		the purposes I indicated above, this counseling pintment was valuable.		ABCDE
10.	Ove	rall, this counselor met my expectations.		ABCDE
11.	l wo	uld recommend this counselor to others.		ABCDE
Comme	ents <sub>-</sub>			

#### **STUDENT EVALUATION FORM - LIBRARIAN**

LIBRA	RIANS'S NAME DA	ATE			
your ap indicate This ev	continuing interest to serve our students, we request that y opointment with the librarian by marking the appropriate let ed below. You may also make written comments on this for valuation will be anonymous and will not be seen by the library be thoughtful and candid in your responses.	tter on the scantron forr orm.	n for	each	item, as
	A = Strongly Agree B = Agree C = Disagree D = Strongly Disagree E = No Opinion / Not App	licable			
About	the Orientation:				
1.	Handouts were related to the subject matter.	ı	А В	СД	E
2.	Worksheets and other learning activities were related to the subject matter.	,	А В	СД	E
3.	Presentation of material in lectures, discussions and othe learning activities was clear, organized and effective.	:r ,	А В	СД	E
About	the Librarian:				
4.	The librarian demonstrated interest in the subject.	ı	А В	C D	E
5.	The librarian was prepared for each class session.	1	А В	C D	E
6.	The librarian encouraged students to participate in the learning process.	,	А В	СД	E
7.	The librarian referred to other libraries as resources, if ne	cessary.	А В	СД	E
8.	The librarian used class time effectively.	ı	А В	СД	E
9.	The librarian maintained classroom control appropriate to type of learning activity.	the ,	А В	C D	Е
10.	The librarian demonstrated courtesy, respect and profess in communicating with students.	sionalism ,	А В	C D	Е
11.	Overall, this librarian met my expectations.	1	А В	C D	Е
Comme	ents				_

# North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION Instructor

Employee N	ame: Banner ID:	Campus: [ ]CC [ ]FC [ ]NOCE
Division:	Department:	Date of Evaluation:
		NDADDO
	PART I. PERFORMANCE STA	INDARDS
Evaluator appr	raisals of performance are indicated by the following symbols:	
	E - Performance is excellent S - Performance is satisfactory	<ul><li>N - Performance needs improvement</li><li>U - Performance is unsatisfactory</li></ul>
standard and r	eatisfactory rating is indicated, example(s) of behavior(s) relat ecommendations for improvement must be recorded under "con adations must be descriptive and specific.	
Performance r	eflecting special strength in an area should also be recorded fo	r the purpose of employee
commendation	n. If a rating criterion is not applicable or cannot be evaluated, n	nark " <b>NA</b> ".
	depth and currency of knowledge appropriate to the subject mat ntent and organization (knowledge of fact, detail and relationsh	
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U	Comments and recommendations:	
[ ] NA		
componer	y in written and oral communication. For all courses, actively tents, facilitates faculty to student and student to student interactions feedback, video conferencing, discussion board, etc.).	
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:	
methods, shop dem	esson presentation and/or facilitation of group or individualized techniques and philosophies of sound education (lectures, discionstration/supervision methods, etc.). For online/hybrid course components involving regular and effective contact and acces	cussions, questioning, panels, laboratory or s, actively teaches the class using appropriate
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:	
	n control appropriate to the teaching environment, understandir evels of student maturity.	ng that there are various techniques and
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U	Comments and recommendations:	

## North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

EVALUATION		
Employee Name:	Pageof	

	PART I. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, CONTINUED
of sound e	out-of-class learning activities, understanding that there are various methods, techniques and philosophies education (lesson assignments, papers, reports, field trips, projects, etc.), and appropriate interactive nts, including external links, for online/hybrid courses.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
course, un distance e	ted, relevant and timely evaluation of student performance appropriate to the subject matter of the inderstanding that there are various methods, techniques and philosophies of evaluation. For courses using education technology, instructor replies to student inquiries through commonly used online communication in an appropriate and timely manner.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
	or student safety, instructional equipment and school property appropriate to the physical conditions of ing situation.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
	dministrative clerical requirements (attendance, Student Learning Outcome assessment data, and grade lled out properly and turned in on time, text and library book requests completed, etc.).
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
use as  a Outcome	on of course syllabi, class handouts, assignments, examinations and other materials generated for professional appropriate to the assignment. Syllabi clearly communicate student expectations, Student Learning es, evaluation standards, and assignment deadlines; for online/hybrid classes, students are informed of the and nontechnical requirements of the class.
Rating [	Comments and recommendations:
	ne extent to which the employee works as part of the team and works effectively and courteously with fellow es, students and the public.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:

## North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

	_	
Employee Name:	Page	ΩŤ

PART II. ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT SURVEY RESPONSES
Where performance is unsatisfactory or indicates a need for improvement, cite specific example(s) under "comments."
Provide a summary analysis of student survey responses with attention to indications of instructor behaviors reflecting:
<ul> <li>A. Courtesy, respect and professionalism in communicating with students.</li> <li>B. Appropriate evaluation of student performance.</li> <li>C. Encouragement of student participation in the learning process.</li> </ul>

PART III. AREA(S) OF NEEDED IMPROVEMENT		

## North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Employee Name:	Page	of	

PART IV. OVERALL RATING AND CERTIFICATION			
OVERALL RATING FOR THIS EMPLOYEE: [ ] Excellent [ ] Satisfactory Unsatisfactory	/ [ ] Needs Improvemen	t []	
Employee Signature	Date		
Evaluator Signature (If other than Immediate Management Supervisor)	Date		
Immediate Management Supervisor Signature	Date		
CEO/Designee Signature	Date		

PART V. EVALUATION RESPONSE (OPTIONAL)	
	0.5 (0.0 (0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0
	rev. 05/08/2025

# North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION Counselor

Employee Na	me: Banner ID:	Campus:	СС	FC	; [	NOCE	Ξ
Division:	Department:	Date of Evalua	ation:				
		•					
	PART I. PERFORMANCE STAI	NDARDS					
Evaluator app	raisals of performance are indicated by the following symbols:						
		Performance neo Performance is t					
and recomme	atisfactory rating is indicated, example(s) of behavior(s) relating tendations for improvement must be recorded under "commer ions must be descriptive and specific.						
Performance	reflecting special strength in an area should also be recorded fo	r the purpose of	employee	e comme	enda	tion.	
If a rating crite	erion is not applicable or cannot be evaluated, mark <b>"NA</b> ".						
1. Breadth, assigned	depth and currency of knowledge appropriate to academic/vocaduties.	ational advisem	ent, cours	e placer	nent	and othe	er
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:						
2. Proficiend	cy in written and oral communication to students.						
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:						
3. Effective	use of articulation agreements and guidance to students in plan	ning transfer pro	grams an	d/or care	ers.		
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:						
4. Appropria	ate guidance to students in values/goal clarification.						
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:						

North Orange County Community College Distric ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION		Counselor
Employee Name:	Page	of

	PART I. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, CONTINUED
5. Relevant	group or one-on-one presentation.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
6. Referral	to academic, financial and psychological support services when appropriate.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
7. Docume	nted, relevant and timely evaluation of student performance when appropriate.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
8. Meeting a etc.).	administrative clerical requirements (Student Education Plans, general education requirement forms, IGETC forms,
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
	on of course syllabi, class handouts, assignments, examinations and other materials generated for professional use priate to the assignment.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:
	the extent to which the employee works as part of the team and works effectively and courteously with fellow es, students and the public.
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:

North Orange County Comm ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFOR		Counselor
Employee Name:	Page	of
PART II. ASSESSMENT OF STUD	DENT SURVEY RESPONSES	
Where performance is unsatisfactory or indicates a need for improve	ement, cite specific example(s) unde	r "comments."
Provide a summary analysis of student survey responses with atten	tion to indications of instructor behav	iors reflecting:
A. Courtesy, respect and professionalism in communicating with s  3. Appropriate evaluation of student performance.  C. Encouragement of student participation in the learning process		
DART III. AREA(S) OF NEE	DED IMPROVEMENT	
PART III. AREA(S) OF NEE	DED IMPROVEMENT	

North Orange County Community Colleg ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EV	e District ALUATION	Counselor
Employee Name:	Page	of
PART IV. OVERALL RATING AND CE	RTIFICATION	
OVERALL RATING FOR THIS EMPLOYEE: Excellent Satisfactory	Needs Improve	ment Unsatisfactory
Employee Signature	Date	
Evaluator (If other than Immediate Management Supervisor)	Date	
Immediate Management Supervisor Signature	Date	
CEO/Designee Signature	Date	
PART V. EVALUATION RESPONSE (	OPTIONAL)	
		rev. 05/08/2025

# North Orange County Community College District ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION Librarian

	Librarian				
Employee Na	ame: Banner ID:	Campus:	СС	FC	NOCE
Division:	Department:	Date of Eva	luation:		
	PART I. PERFORMANCE ST	ANDARDS			
Evaluator app	raisals of performance are indicated by the following symbols	:			
		l - Performance ne J - Performance is			
and recomme	atisfactory rating is indicated, example(s) of behavior(s) relating endations for improvement must be recorded under "committions must be descriptive and specific.				
Performance	reflecting special strength in an area should also be recorded	I for the purpose o	f employe	ee commend	dation.
If a rating crite	erion is not applicable or cannot be evaluated, mark " <b>NA</b> ".				
1. Breadth,	depth and currency of knowledge appropriate to research nee	eds and other assi	gned duti	es.	
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
	cy in written and oral communication to students.				
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
	bibliographic instruction, including reference interview technic	lues.			
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
4. Worksite	4. Worksite control appropriate to the library environment.				
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				

North Orange County Community College Distric ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION		Librarian
Employee Name:	Page	of

PART I. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, CONTINUED					
5. Relevant group or one-on-one presentation.					
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
6. Referral to	6. Referral to out-of-library resources when appropriate.				
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
7. Documer	nted, relevant and timely evaluation of student performance when appropriate.				
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				
	administrative clerical requirements (annual reports, departmental statistics, department supply orders, equipment orientation reports, etc.).				
Rating [	Comments and recommendations:				
	n of course syllabi, class handouts, assignments, examinations and other materials generated for professional use priate to the assignment.				
Rating [	Comments and recommendations:				
10. Consider the extent to which the employee works as part of the team and works effectively and courteously with fellow employees, students and the public.					
Rating [ ] E [ ] S [ ] N [ ] U [ ] NA	Comments and recommendations:				

North Orange County Community College ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVAL	District LUATION	Librarian
mployee Name:	Page	of
PART II. ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT SURV	EY RESPONSES	
Where performance is unsatisfactory or indicates a need for improvement, cite spe	ecific example(s) under	"comments."
Provide a summary analysis of student survey responses with attention to indication	ons of instructor behavi	ors reflecting:
A. Courtesy, respect and professionalism in communicating with students.  Appropriate evaluation of student performance.  Encouragement of student participation in the learning process.		
PART III. AREA(S) OF NEEDED IMPRO	OVEMENT	

North Orange County Community Conduction ADJUNCT FACULTY PERFORMANCE	ollege District E EVALUATION	Librarian
Employee Name:	Page _	of
PART IV. OVERALL RATING AND	CERTIFICATION	
OVERALL RATING FOR THIS EMPLOYEE: Excellent Satisfact	tory Needs Improveme	nt Unsatisfactory
Employee Signature	Date	
Evaluator (If other than Immediate Management Supervisor)	Date	
Immediate Management Supervisor Signature	Date	
CEO/Designee Signature	Date	
PART V. EVALUATION RESPONS	SE (OPTIONAL)	

rev. 05/08/2025

APPENDIX C

**GRIEVANCE FORMS** 

REV 07/2013

#### NORTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO GRIEVANT:**

Submit the original of this grievance form to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources.

#### **ADJUNCT FACULTY**

#### GRIEVANCE FORM

All references to DAYS mean days on which the central administrative office of the District is regularly open for business.

Be sure to sign and date the form. Retain a copy for your files.	VANGETONIII					
Grievant's Name	Contact Telephone Work Telephone					
Grievant's Mailing Address	City Zip Code					
Name of Grievant's ADFAC Representative (if any)	_ I request a grievance resolution meeting □ YES with the respondent/designee: □ NO					
Grievant's Work Location: [ ] CC [ ] FC [ ] NOC	E INDICATE THE LEVEL OF GRIEVANCE INITIATION:					
Division: Dept/Area:	[ ] LEVEL IVVO - President/Provost					
Name of Management Supervisor:	[ ] LEVEL THREE - Vice Chancellor, Human Resources —					
DATE OF VIOLATION: Indicate the date of the alleged vio	olation which is the basis for this					
PROVISION OF AGREEMENT VIOLATED: Cite the specific Article(s) and section(s) of the Agreement between ADFAC and the District alleged to have been violated, misapplied or misinterpreted.						
specific manner in which the cited Article(s) and section(	ise description of the nature and grounds of the grievance and the s) of the Agreement are alleged to have been violated, misapplied, and details necessary for complete understanding of the grievance.					
REMEDY REQUESTED: State the specific action(s) requented additional pages as necessary.	ested of the District which you believe will resolve the grievance.					
Grievant's Signature:	Date:					
DISTRICT RESPONSE TO GRIEVANCE: Attach additions	al pages as necessary.					
Authorized District Signature:	Date:					
grievance appeal form (Appendix C-2) to the Vice Chancello	e and wish to appeal to the next level, you must submit a completed r of Human Resources within ten (10) days of receipt of this response. If this processed grievance form, along with any attachments and other					
DISTRICT USE ONLY	Section 16.6.2.3 Meeting With Grievant: (if requested):					

#### NORTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO GRIEVANT:**

Submit the original of this grievance appeal form to the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources. Be sure to sign and date the form. Retain a copy for your files.

Attach a copy of all processed grievance forms and other documents of an evidentiary nature.

## ADJUNCT FACULTY GRIEVANCE APPEAL FORM

All references to DAYS mean days on which the central administrative office of the District is regularly open for business.

evidentiary nature.		
Grievant's Name	Contact Telephone	Work Telephone
Grievant's Mailing Address	City	Zip Code
Name of Grievant's ADFAC Representative (if any)		
Grievant's Work Location: [ ] CC [ ] FC [ ] NOCE	INDICATE THE LEVEL	OF GRIEVANCE APPEAL:
Division: Dept/Area:	[ ] LEVEL TWO - Presi	dent/Provost
Name of Management Supervisor :	[ ] LEVEL THREE - Vice (	Chancellor, Human Resources
REASON FOR APPEAL: Indicate the specific reason(s) fo	r requesting an appeal of this g	rievance.
DEMEDY DECUESTED: State the areaidin action(a) resuccession	to d of the District which you be	liava will readly a the
REMEDY REQUESTED: State the specific action(s) reques grievance. Attach additional pages as necessary.	ted of the District which you be	lieve will resolve the
Grievant's Signature:	Date:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
DISTRICT RESPONSE TO GRIEVANCE: Attach additional p	pages as necessary.	
Authorized District Signature:	Date:	
Notice to Grievant: If you are not satisfied with this response a grievance appeal form (Appendix C-2) to the Vice Chancellor of The grievance appeal form must be accompanied by a copy of a documents of an evidentiary nature.	f Human Resources within ten (10	) days of receipt of this response.
DISTRICT USE ONLY Date Received:		